MACC PRIVATE EQUITIES INC Form 10-K December 29, 2010

#### UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

#### Form 10-K

(Mark one)

# R ANNUAL REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010

## £ TRANSITION REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from \_\_\_\_\_ to \_\_\_\_\_

Commission file number 000-24412

#### MACC PRIVATE EQUITIES INC. (Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware42-1421406(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)2533 South Coast Highway 101; Suite 240,<br/>Cardiff-By-The-Sea, California92007

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number (760) 479-5080

Securities registered under Section 12(b) of the Exchange Act: None.

Securities registered under Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act: Common Stock, \$0.01 par value

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes £ No R

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act. Yes  $\pounds$  No R

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes R No £

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Website, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes £ No £

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§ 229.405 of this chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. £

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer," and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer £ Non-accelerated filer R (Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Accelerated filer £ Smaller reporting Company £

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes  $\pm$  No R

Aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of December 15, 2010, based upon the value of the price reported by the OTCQB on that date: \$1,700,588.

Number of shares outstanding of the registrant's Common Stock as of December 15, 2010: 2,464,621

#### DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE - None.

#### CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-K of MACC Private Equities Inc. ("MACC" or "we" or "us" or the "Company") contains forward-looking statements. All statements in this Form 10-K, including those made by MACC's management, other than statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based on current management expectations that involve substantial risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results expressed in, or implied by, these forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements relate to future events or our future financial performance. We generally identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as "may," "will," "should," "could," "would," "expects," "plans," "anticipates," "believes," "estimates," "predicts," "intends," and "continue," or the negative of these terms, or other similar words. Examples of forward-looking statements contained in this Form 10-K include statements regarding MACC's:

ability to continue as a going concern; ability to pay down debt; ability to meet cash flow requirements; future financial and operating results; business strategies, prospects, and prospects of its portfolio companies; ability to operate as a business development company; regulatory structure; adequacy of cash resources and working capital; projected costs; competitive positions; management's plans and objectives for future operations; and industry trends.

These forward-looking statements are based on management's estimates, projections and assumptions as of the date hereof and include the assumptions that underlie such statements. Any expectations based on these forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties and other important factors, including those discussed below and in the section titled "Risk Factors." Other risks and uncertainties are disclosed in MACC's prior Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") filings. These and many other factors could affect MACC's future financial condition and operating results and could cause actual results to differ materially from expectations based on forward-looking statements made in this document or elsewhere by MACC or on its behalf. MACC undertakes no obligation to revise or update any forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements contained in this Form 10-K are excluded from the safe harbor protection provided by Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "1933 Act") and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act").

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Part I	Page
Item 1	Business	1
Item 1A	Risk Factors	2
Item 1B	Unresolved Staff Comments	11
Item 2	Properties	12
Item 3	Legal Proceedings	12
Item 4	(Removed and Reserved).	12
	Part II	
Item 5	Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities	12
Item 6	Selected Financial Data	14
Item 7	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operation	14
Item 7A	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	23
Item 8	Financial Statements and Supplementary Data	25
Item 9	Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure	51
Item 9A	Controls and Procedures	51
Item 9B	Other Information	52
	Part III	
Item 10	Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance	53
Item 11	Executive Compensation	58
Item 12	Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management	60
Item 13	Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence	61

Item 14	Principal Accountant Fees and Services	61
	Part IV	
Item 15	Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules	63

#### Part I

#### Item 1. Business.

#### General

MACC Private Equities Inc. was formed as a Delaware corporation on March 3, 1994. It has elected to be treated as a business development company ("BDC") under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "1940 Act"). MACC has no employees, and all of its day to day operations are carried out by its officers and the staff of its investment adviser, Eudaimonia Asset Management, LLC ("EAM" or the "Adviser") with the assistance of its subadviser, InvestAmerica Investment Advisors, Inc. ("InvestAmerica" or the "Subadviser"). EAM was engaged by MACC in April 2008 to manage any assets which are raised after that date (the "New Portfolio"), and InvestAmerica was engaged by MACC and EAM to assist EAM in continuing to manage the assets which MACC held prior to April 2008 (the "Existing Portfolio"). However, as of the date of this report, no new assets have been raised to create the New Portfolio. In addition, at the annual meeting held on November 30, 2010 the shareholders voted against allowing the MACC to 1) sell or otherwise issue shares of the Company's common stock at a price below its then-current net asset value per share, and 2) to issue warrants, options or rights to subscribe for or convert into the Company's common stock. The Board of Directors is evaluating appropriate next steps based on shareholder actions. The Board will continue to review a number of alternatives, including seeking shareholder approval to liquidate. At same time, we will continue to harvest Existing Portfolio assets to continue the repayment of our outstanding debt.

#### **Financial Information**

Please refer to "Item 7-Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" for information about revenues, profit and loss measurements and total assets and liabilities, and "Item 8 - Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for our financial statements and supplementary data.

#### MACC's Operation as a BDC

Under the 1940 Act, a BDC may not acquire any asset other than "Qualifying Assets" as defined under Section 55(a) of the 1940 Act, unless, at the time the acquisition is made, Qualifying Assets represent at least 70% of the value of the BDC's total assets. The principal categories of Qualifying Assets relevant to MACC's business are the following:

- (1)Securities purchased in transactions not involving any public offering from the issuer of such securities, which issuer is an eligible portfolio company. An eligible portfolio company is defined in the 1940 Act as any issuer that:
  - (a) is organized under the laws of, and has its principal place of business in, the United States;
     (b) is not an investment company; and
     (c) satisfies one of the following:
- (i) it does not have any class of securities with respect to which a member of a national securities exchange, broker or dealer may extend or maintain credit;
- (ii) it is controlled by a BDC, either alone or as part of a group acting together, and such BDC exercises control over the company and as a result of such control has an affiliated person who is a director of such BDC;
- (iii) it has total assets of not more than \$4,000,000, and capital and surplus (shareholders' equity less retained earnings) of not less than \$2,000,000;
- (iv) it has a class of securities listed on a national securities exchange, with an aggregate market value of outstanding voting and non-voting equity of less than \$250 million; or

- (v)such other criteria prescribed by the SEC established as consistent with public interest, the protection of investors, and the purposes fairly intended by the policy and provisions of the 1940 Act.
- (2)Cash, cash items, government securities, or high quality debt securities maturing in one year or less from the time of investment.
- (3)Securities received in exchange for or distributed on or with respect to securities described in (1) above, or pursuant to the exercise of options, warrants or rights relating to such securities.

- 1 -

In addition, a BDC must have been organized (and have its principal place of business) in the United States for the purpose of making investments in the types of securities described in (1) above and, in order to count the securities as Qualifying Assets for the purpose of the 70% test, the BDC must make available to the issuers of the securities significant managerial assistance. Making available significant managerial assistance means, among other things, any arrangement whereby the BDC, through its directors, officers or employees offers to provide, and, if accepted, does so provide, significant guidance and counsel concerning the management, operations or business objectives and policies of a portfolio company.

Under the 1940 Act, once a company has elected to be regulated as a BDC, it may not change the nature of its business so as to cease to be, or withdraw its election as, a BDC unless authorized by vote of a majority, as defined in the 1940 Act, of the company's shares.

Investments and Divestitures

During the fiscal year 2010, MACC sold portfolio investments and collected on installment sales resulting in a net realized loss of \$3,185,785. MACC made two follow-on investments of Existing Portfolio companies of \$72,342 in order to protect its interests in those positions.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

AN INVESTMENT IN MACC'S COMMON STOCK IS SUBJECT TO A NUMBER OF RISKS AND SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS, INCLUDING THE FOLLOWING. THE RISKS SET OUT BELOW ARE THE PRINCIPAL RISK FACTORS ASSOCIATED WITH AN INVESTMENT IN MACC KNOWN TO US, AS WELL AS THOSE FACTORS GENERALLY ASSOCIATED WITH AN INVESTMENT IN A COMPANY WITH INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES, INVESTMENT POLICIES, CAPITAL STRUCTURE OR TRADING MARKETS SIMILAR TO MACC'S.

#### RISKS RELATED TO OUR INVESTMENTS

Our investments may be risky, and you could lose all or part of your investment.

MACC is designed for long-term investors. Investors should not rely on MACC for their short-term financial needs. The value of the higher risk securities in which MACC invests will be affected by general economic conditions; the securities market; the markets for public offerings and corporate acquisitions; specific industry conditions; and the management of the individual portfolio companies. Additionally, MACC may not achieve its investment objectives.

MACC continues to have an ongoing need to raise cash from portfolio sales to fund operations and pay down outstanding debt. MACC's effort to sell certain investments has taken longer than initially anticipated while performance of the underlying portfolio companies in certain cases has deteriorated. MACC's ability to liquidate positions continued to be adversely affected by current credit conditions and the downturn in the financial markets and the global economy throughout the current fiscal year. MACC had a principal of \$3,367,928 on its term loan (the "Term Loan") with Cedar Rapids Bank & Trust ("CRB&T"), on September 30, 2010 which is due and payable on January 10, 2011. On December 13, 2010, the Company paid \$693,263 to CRB&T in the form of a principal payment on the outstanding note payable with the CRB&T. The payment was made from proceeds of a portfolio company exit transaction and in accordance with the terms outlined in the Term Loan. Subsequent to the payment, the balance of the Term Loan on December 13, 2010 was \$2,663,029. It is expected that MACC will enter into an extension of the Term Loan on or about January 10, 2011 which will extend its maturity date to July 10, 2011.

MACC will need to either extend the due date on the current Term Loan or consider additional sources of financing and additional sales of investments in order to meet current payment and operating requirements. No assurance can be given that MACC will be successful in its efforts to extend its current financing arrangement or raise additional funding in the near term and accordingly these facts raise substantial doubt about MACC's ability to continue as a going concern. The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that MACC will continue as a going concern.

At MACC's annual shareholder meeting held on November 30, 2010, shareholders voted against giving MACC the ability to raise additional capital through the issuance of shares of common stock at a price below MACC's then-current

- 2 -

net asset value per share. In addition, shareholders voted against allowing MACC the ability to issue warrants, options or rights to subscribe for or convert into common stock. Without these authorizations to sell shares at below net asset value or issue options or warrants, MACC's ability to raise funding through the capital markets is highly unlikely.

An investment strategy focused primarily on privately-held companies presents certain challenges, including the lack of available information about these companies, a dependence upon the talents and efforts of only a few key portfolio company personnel and a greater vulnerability to economic downturns.

As a BDC, MACC invests a large portion of its assets in restricted securities issued by small, private companies, some of which have operated at losses or have experienced substantial fluctuations in operating results. There is generally little or no publicly available information about such companies and MACC must rely on the diligence of its Adviser and Subadviser to obtain the information necessary for its decision to invest in these companies. In order to maintain its status as a BDC, MACC must have at least 70% of its total assets invested in Qualifying Assets. Typically, for their success, such companies depend on the management talents and efforts of one person or a small group of persons, so that the death, disability or resignation of such person or persons could have a materially adverse impact on them. Moreover, smaller companies frequently have narrower product lines and smaller market shares than larger companies and, therefore, may be more vulnerable to competitors' actions and market conditions, as well as general economic downturns. Such companies may face intense competition, including competition from companies with greater financial resources, more extensive research and development, manufacturing, marketing and service capabilities, and a larger number of qualified managerial and technical personnel. Because these companies will generally have highly leveraged capital structures, reduced cash flow resulting from an adverse business development, shifts in customer preferences, an economic downturn or the inability to complete a public offering or other financing may adversely affect the return on, or the recovery of, MACC's investment in them. Investment in such companies therefore involves a high degree of business and financial risk, which can result in substantial losses and, accordingly, should be considered highly speculative. No assurance can be given that some of MACC's investments will not result in substantial or complete losses.

Because our investments are and will continue to typically be privately-issued, they will have limited liquidity, and thus their value is decreased.

All of our Existing Portfolio investments consist of securities acquired directly from their issuers in private transactions. They are usually subject to restrictions on resale and are generally illiquid. Usually there is no established trading market for such securities into which they could be sold. In addition, most of the securities are not eligible for sale to the public without registration under the 1933 Act, which would involve delay and expense. Restricted securities generally sell at a price lower than similar securities that are not subject to restrictions on sale.

As a BDC, we are subject to limitations on our ability to engage in certain transactions with affiliates.

As a result of our election to be regulated as a BDC, we are prohibited under the 1940 Act from knowingly participating in certain transactions with our affiliates without the prior approval of our independent directors or the SEC. The 1940 Act defines "affiliates" broadly to include (i) any person that owns, directly or indirectly, 5% or more of our outstanding voting securities, (ii) any person of which we own 5% or more of their outstanding securities, (iii) any person who directly or indirectly controls us, (iv) our officers, directors and employees, and (v) our Adviser and Subadviser, among others, and we are generally prohibited from buying or selling any security from or to such affiliate, absent the prior approval of our independent directors. The 1940 Act also prohibits "joint" transactions with an affiliate, which could include investments in the same portfolio company (whether at the same or different times), without prior approval of our independent directors. If a person acquires more than 25% of our voting securities, we

will be prohibited from buying or selling any security from or to such person, or entering into joint transactions with such person, absent the prior approval of the SEC.

If our investments are deemed not to be Qualifying Assets, we could lose our status as a BDC or be precluded from investing according to our current business plan.

As a result of our election to be regulated as a BDC, we must not acquire any assets other than Qualifying Assets unless, at the time of and after giving effect to such acquisition, at least 70% of our total assets are Qualifying Assets. Qualifying Assets include "eligible portfolio companies." "Eligible portfolio companies" are generally companies which are organized in the United States, are not investment companies, and which either: (i) do not have securities for which a

- 3 -

broker may extend margin credit, (ii) are controlled by a BDC or a group including a BDC, (iii) are solvent and have assets under \$4 million and capital and surplus of at least \$2 million, or (iv) (A) do not have a class of securities listed on a national securities exchange, or (B) do have a class of securities listed on a national securities exchange, but have a market capitalization below \$250,000,000.

If, for example, we acquire debt or equity securities from an issuer that has outstanding marginable securities at the time we make such an investment, or if we acquire securities from an issuer which otherwise meets the definition of an eligible portfolio company but we purchase the securities in a public offering, these acquired assets cannot be treated as Qualifying Assets. The failure of an investment to meet the definition of a Qualifying Asset could preclude us from otherwise taking advantage of an investment opportunity we find attractive. In addition, our failure to meet the BDC Qualifying Asset requirements could result in the loss of BDC status, which would significantly and adversely affect our business plan by, among other things, requiring us to register as a closed-end investment company.

Our use of leverage may create conflicts of interest and we are exposed to the risks associated with leverage.

In addition to our outstanding loans discussed below, we may borrow additional money to increase our ability to make investments, though we do not anticipate issuing preferred stock in the next twelve months. Lenders from whom we may borrow money or holders of our debt (or preferred, if issued) securities will have fixed dollar claims on our assets that are superior to the claims of our stockholders, and we may grant a security interest in our assets in connection with our debt. Current and potential lenders will not, however, hold any veto or other power to change any of our policies. In the case of a liquidation event, those lenders or note holders (in addition to holders of preferred stock if we issued such stock) would receive proceeds before our stockholders. Though we presently have no plans to do so, if we incur additional debt, the costs associated with such leverage, including commitment fees and interest (in the case of debt) or issuance and dividend costs (in the case of preferred stock), would be borne entirely by holders of our common stock.

Debt, also known as leverage, magnifies the potential for gain or loss on amounts invested and, therefore, increases the risks associated with investing in our securities. The increased potential of gain through the use of leverage also creates a conflict of interest in that it can encourage our Adviser to increase our assets through leverage in an effort to earn management or incentive fees under the Investment Advisory Agreement between with EAM, effective April 29, 2008 (the "Advisory Agreement"), while our common stockholders would incur the costs of utilizing such leverage and bear the risks associated with the debt. Even though the Company, and therefore its common stockholders, would bear the risks and expenses of leverage, the incentive fees payable to the Adviser will not be directly reduced by any interest expense associated with such leverage.

Leverage is generally considered a speculative investment technique. If the value of our assets increases, then leveraging would cause the net asset value attributable to our common stock to increase more than it otherwise would had we not leveraged. Conversely, if the value of our assets decreases, leveraging would cause the net asset value attributable to our common stock to decline more than it otherwise would have had we not leveraged. If an asset purchased with leverage declines in value, the fact that we incurred leverage to finance the purchase of such asset will compound the decrease in our net assets attributable to our common stock and could eliminate our equity in such investment. Similarly, any increase in our revenue in excess of interest expense on our borrowed funds would cause our net income to increase more than it would without the leverage. Any decrease in our revenue would cause our net income to decline more than it would have had we not borrowed funds and could negatively affect our ability to make distributions on our common stock. Our ability to service any debt that we incur will depend largely on our financial performance and the performance of our portfolio companies and will be subject to prevailing economic conditions, competitive pressures and risks of default.

MACC had a principal of \$3,367,928 on its Term Loan with CRB&T, on September 30, 2010. The Term Loan has a stated maturity date of January 10, 2011 and is subject to a variable interest rate based on an independent index. The current interest rate applicable to the Term Ioan is 6.0%. It is expected that MACC will enter into an extension of the Term Loan on or about January 10, 2011 which will extend the maturity date of the Term Loan to July 10, 2011.

We have lost money which impacts our ability to operate.

Due to a number of factors, MACC's assets have declined in the last several years, along with its share price. These results have negatively impacted our ability to raise capital as part of our strategy to increase assets for the New Portfolio in an effort to decrease our per-share expenses. Most recently, our stockholders have not approved alternative capital

- 4 -

raising proposals to fund a New Portfolio investment strategy. Our decline in assets has also hindered our ability to undertake leverage to increase assets and potential returns. Furthermore, our past performance has limited our liquidity and has caused our financial condition to deteriorate. There can be no assurance that our future performance will improve.

Our quarterly results may fluctuate.

We could experience fluctuations in our quarterly operating results due to a number of factors, including the interest rates payable on the debt investments or the dividend rates on the equity investments we make, the default rates on such investments, the level of our expenses, variations in and the timing of the recognition of realized and unrealized gains or losses and the degree to which we encounter competition in our markets and general economic conditions. As a result of these factors, results for any period should not be relied upon as being indicative of performance in future periods.

Our portfolio may be concentrated in a limited number of portfolio companies.

Our Existing Portfolio consists of a limited number of portfolio companies, and if we raise assets, our New Portfolio may be invested in a small number of issuers. One or two of our portfolio companies may constitute a significant percentage of our total portfolio, especially in the months following any equity offering we commence. An inherent risk associated with such investment concentration is that we may be adversely affected if one or two of our investments perform poorly or if we need to write down the value of any one investment. Financial difficulty on the part of any single portfolio company will expose us to a greater risk of loss than would be the case if we were a more "diversified" company holding numerous investments.

When we are a debt or minority equity investor in a portfolio company, we may not be in a position to control or significantly influence that portfolio company.

When we make minority equity investments or invest in debt, we will be subject to the risk that a portfolio company may make business decisions with which we may disagree, and that the stockholders and management of such company may take risks or otherwise act in ways that do not serve our interests. As a result, a portfolio company may make decisions that could decrease the value of our investments.

Changes in laws or regulations or in the interpretations of laws or regulations could significantly affect our operations and cost of doing business.

We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations and are subject to judicial and administrative decisions that affect our operations, including loan originations, maximum interest rates, fees and other charges, disclosures to portfolio companies, the terms of secured transactions, collection and foreclosure procedures and other trade practices. If these laws, regulations or decisions change, we may have to incur significant expenses in order to comply, or we may have to restrict our operations. In addition, if we do not comply with applicable laws, regulations and decisions, or fail to obtain licenses that may become necessary for the conduct of our business, we may be subject to civil fines and criminal penalties, any of which could have a material adverse effect upon our business, results of operations or financial condition.

#### RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS

We operate in a highly competitive market for investment opportunities.

Although the Existing Portfolio is static, we compete with public and private funds, commercial and investment banks and commercial financing companies to make the types of investments that we make. Many of our competitors are substantially larger and have considerably greater financial, technical and marketing resources than us. For example, some competitors may have a lower cost of funds and access to funding sources that are not available to us. In addition, some of our competitors may have higher risk tolerances or different risk assessments, allowing them to consider a wider variety of investments and establish more relationships than us. Furthermore, many of our competitors are not subject to the regulatory restrictions that the 1940 Act imposes on us as a result of our election to be regulated as a BDC.

Closed-end investment companies' shares usually trade below net asset value.

Shares of closed-end investment companies like MACC frequently trade at a discount from net asset value and MACC's shares have historically traded at a discount from net asset value. At September 30, 2010, MACC's shares traded at a 65% discount to their net asset value on the OTCQB (as discussed in Item 5). This characteristic of shares of closed-end investment companies is separate and distinct from the risk that our per share net asset value will decline. In addition, due to the following reasons, MACC is not only different from other closed-end funds, but is at greater risk than similar venture capital closed-end funds.

First, many closed-end funds generally are structured to produce annual dividends to shareholders. MACC, however, has not paid dividends but, rather, retained all income after taxes and expenses to reduce debt or fund additional investments and thus create capital appreciation. The return to holders of MACC's common stock is thus anticipated to be long-term and capital in nature.

Second, due to several factors, including the small size of MACC relative to fixed expenses, and the fact that much of the income of MACC arises through capital gains rather than ordinary income, MACC has lost money (that is, had net investment expense, rather than net investment income) in each of the last seven years. Many similar funds are structured to earn sufficient current income to achieve operating income (investment income in excess of operating expenses) each year.

Third, at MACC's annual shareholder meeting held on November 30, 2010, shareholders voted against giving MACC the ability to raise additional capital through the issuance of shares of common stock at a price below MACC's then-current net asset value per share. In addition, shareholders voted against allowing MACC the ability to issue warrants, options or rights to subscribe for or convert into common stock. Without these authorizations to sell shares at below net asset value or issue options or warrants, MACC's ability to raise funding through the capital markets is highly unlikely.

We may not be able to elect pass-through tax treatment in the future.

Currently, MACC is a taxable entity (a "C corporation") in order to utilize net operating loss carryforwards generated from a predecessor company as well as its operating losses. In the future, depending on the ability to operate as a going concern, MACC may elect to qualify for pass-through tax treatment contained in Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended ("Code"). Subchapter M allows certain income to be taxed at the shareholder level only without incurring tax at the corporate level, although MACC may be subject to a corporate level tax on certain built-in gains in existence at the time MACC would first become subject to Subchapter M. It is possible that, for a number of reasons, MACC may be unable to meet Subchapter M requirements, or that it may also cease to qualify for pass-through treatment, or be subject to a four percent excise tax, if it fails to make certain distributions. Under the 1940 Act, MACC is not permitted to make distributions to shareholders unless it meets certain asset coverage requirements with respect to money borrowed and any senior securities issued. Non-availability of pass-through tax treatment may potentially have a materially adverse effect on the total return, if any, obtainable from an investment in MACC's shares, once net operating loss carryforwards are no longer available and the Subchapter M election has become advantageous.

We are dependent upon our Adviser's and Subadviser's key personnel for our future success.

We depend on the diligence, expertise and business relationships of our Adviser and Subadviser. If we commence investing in the New Portfolio, the Adviser will evaluate, negotiate, structure, monitor, and close our investments, subject to supervision by the MACC Board of Directors (the "Board"). Our advisory agreements with EAM and InvestAmerica are short-term in nature and subject to cancellation on sixty days' notice. Our future success will

depend on the continued service of certain key individuals of the Adviser and Subadviser. The departure of one or more of these key individuals could have a material adverse effect on our ability to achieve our investment objectives and on the value of our common stock. We will rely on certain employees of the Adviser and Subadviser, who may devote significant amounts of their time to their respective activities that are not related to MACC. To the extent those employees of the Adviser and Subadviser who are not committed exclusively to us are unable to, or do not, devote sufficient amounts of their time and energy to our affairs, our performance may suffer.

Potential significant conflicts of interest may impact our investment returns.

All of our officers also serve in similar capacities with EAM, which serves as an investment adviser to other accounts, and in the future may serve as investment adviser to other investment funds. In that case, our officers may have obligations to investors in those entities, the fulfillment of which might not be in the best interests of MACC or its stockholders or that may require them to devote time to services for such other entities, which could interfere with the time available to provide services to MACC. Nonetheless, EAM is of the opinion that any such efforts of its officers relative to MACC would be synergistic with and beneficial to the affairs of both MACC and EAM. InvestAmerica and its affiliates also serve as investment advisers to other funds. It is possible that, through the course of identifying and structuring potential New Portfolio investments, EAM may be presented with investment opportunities which could benefit certain investors in the portfolio company to the detriment of our stockholders. For example, if we overvalue a portfolio company investment, our investment could benefit a portfolio company investor by providing capital to the company, and thus its investors, at below market rates.

While EAM intends to allocate investment opportunities in a fair and equitable manner (i.e., pro-rata among its accounts) consistent with our investment objective and strategies, and in accordance with its written allocation procedures so that we will not be disadvantaged in relation to any other client, EAM's services under the Advisory Agreement are not exclusive. Both EAM and InvestAmerica are free to furnish the same or similar services to other entities, including businesses that may directly or indirectly compete with us, provided they notify us prior to agreeing to serve as investment adviser to another entity.

As a result of regulatory restrictions, we are not permitted to invest in any portfolio company in which the Adviser, the Subadviser or any of their respective affiliates currently has an investment. However, under the terms of an exemptive order granted by the SEC, under certain specified circumstances, we may invest (and make follow on investments) in portfolio companies at the same time and on the same terms as InvestAmerica's affiliates. All such investments will be reviewed by our independent directors to assure conformity to the exemptive order.

In the course of our investing activities, we pay management and incentive fees to EAM and InvestAmerica. As a result, holders of our common stock invest on a "gross" basis and receive distributions on a "net" basis after expenses, resulting in, among other things, a lower rate of return than one might achieve through direct investments in our portfolio companies. Because of this arrangement, there may be times when the management teams of either EAM or InvestAmerica have interests which differ from those of our stockholders, giving rise to a conflict. For example, if we borrow money or issue debt instruments and thereby increase our assets, which in turn increases the management fee payable to our Adviser, we simultaneously increase our expenses to service such debt and thereby reduce our stockholders' return on their investment in MACC. Further, the use of leverage increases the likelihood of gain (or loss) which amounts would be subject to the incentive fee we pay to our Adviser.

The incentive fee payable to our Adviser may create conflicting incentives.

Our Adviser will receive an incentive fee based, in part, upon net realized capital gains on our investments. As a result, our Adviser may have an incentive to pursue investments that are likely to result in capital gains as compared to income-producing securities. Such a practice could result in our investing in more speculative or long term securities than would otherwise be the case, which could result in higher investment losses, particularly during economic downturns or longer return cycles.

Under the Advisory Agreement with EAM, the incentive fee is calculated on a "period to period" basis, meaning that changes in the value of portfolio investments in subsequent periods do not retroactively affect incentive fee calculations from prior periods. Further, the Advisory Agreement empowers EAM with the discretion to determine when MACC should dispose of portfolio investments. This formula and authority granted to EAM presents a conflict

of interest in that it could prompt EAM to concentrate realized gains or losses in one performance measuring period in an effort to maximize that period's gain (or another period's loss), and therefore maximize the incentive fee payment for such period, when MACC would be able to achieve greater gains if they were realized in different periods. In addition to duties imposed on EAM by the 1940 Act and other laws, under the terms of the Advisory Agreement, the Board of Directors has the responsibility to monitor the value of MACC's portfolio consistent with MACC's Valuation Procedures. These responsibilities include the appropriateness of and the timing of recognizing unrealized depreciation, reversals of unrealized depreciation, and capital losses and gains, which serves to mitigate the inherent conflict associated with the Adviser's interest in enhancing the amount of net capital gains with respect to the calculation of the incentive fee.

Our common stock price may be volatile.

The trading price of our common stock may fluctuate substantially. The price of the common stock may be higher or lower than the price you pay for your shares, depending on many factors, some of which are beyond our control and may not be directly related to our operating performance. Additionally, we are no longer listed on NASDAQ and quotations of our stock on the OTCQB (as discussed in Item 5.) may not be indicative of our operating performance. These factors include, but are not limited to, the following:

price and volume fluctuations in the overall stock market from time to time;

significant volatility in the market price and trading volume of securities of BDCs or other financial services companies;

changes in laws or regulatory policies or tax guidelines with respect to BDCs or regulated investment companies; actual or anticipated changes in our earnings or fluctuations in our operating results or changes in the expectations of securities analysts;

risks associated with possible disruption in our operations due to terrorism;

general economic conditions and trends;

loss of a major funding source;

departures of key personnel; or

other risks and uncertainties as may be detailed from time to time in our public announcements and SEC filings.

Risks Related to the Existing Portfolio

Our Existing Portfolio investments are recorded at fair value as determined in good faith by our Board. As a result, there is and will continue to be uncertainty as to the value of our portfolio investments.

Pursuant to the requirements of the 1940 Act, substantially all of our Existing Portfolio investments are recorded at fair value as determined in good faith by our Board on a quarterly basis, and, as a result, there is uncertainty regarding the value of our portfolio investments. At September 30, 2010, approximately 96% of our total assets represented investments recorded at fair value. Since there will typically be no readily ascertainable market value for the investments in our Existing Portfolio, our Board will determine in good faith the fair value of our investments pursuant to our valuation policy and a consistently applied valuation process.

There is no single standard for determining fair value in good faith. As a result, determining fair value requires that judgment be applied to the specific facts and circumstances of each portfolio investment while employing a consistently applied valuation process for the types of investments we hold. Unlike banks, we are not permitted to provide a general reserve for anticipated loan losses; we are instead required by the 1940 Act to specifically value each individual investment and record unrealized depreciation for an investment that we believe has lost value, including where collection of a debt security or realization of an equity security is doubtful. Conversely, we record unrealized appreciation if we have an indication that the underlying portfolio company has appreciated in value and, therefore, our security has also appreciated in value, where appropriate. Without a readily ascertainable market value and because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, fair value of our Existing Portfolio investments determined in good faith by the Board may differ significantly from the values that would have been used by another party or had a ready market existed for the Existing Portfolio investments, and the differences could be material.

We adjust quarterly the valuation of our portfolio to reflect the Board's determination of the fair value of each Existing Portfolio investment. Any changes in fair value are recorded in our statement of operations as "Net change in unrealized depreciation/appreciation on investments."

An investment strategy that focuses on privately-held companies presents certain challenges, including the lack of available information about these companies, a dependence upon the talents and efforts of only a few key portfolio company personnel, a greater vulnerability to economic downturns and a greater inability to liquidate our investments in an advantageous manner.

As a BDC, we have invested most of our assets in restricted securities issued by small, private companies, some of which have operated at losses or have experienced substantial fluctuations in operating results. There is generally little or no publicly available information about such companies and we must rely on the diligence of our Investment Adviser and

- 8 -

Subadviser to obtain the information necessary to invest in these companies. If our Adviser and Subadviser are unable to obtain all material information about these companies, including with respect to operational, regulatory, environmental, litigation and managerial risks, our Adviser and Subadviser may not make a fully-informed investment decision, and we may lose some or all of the money invested in these companies. In addition, our Adviser and Subadviser may inappropriately value the prospects of an investment, causing us to overpay for such investment and fail to receive an expected or projected return on its investment.

Typically, for their success, such companies depend on the management talents and efforts of one person or a small group of persons, so that the death, disability or resignation of such person or persons could have a materially adverse impact on them. Moreover, smaller companies frequently have narrower product lines and smaller market shares than larger companies and, therefore, may be more vulnerable to competitors' actions and market conditions, as well as general economic downturns. Such companies may face intense competition, including competition from companies with greater financial resources, more extensive research and development, manufacturing, marketing and service capabilities, and a larger number of qualified managerial and technical personnel. Because these companies will generally have highly leveraged capital structures, reduced cash flow resulting from an adverse business development, shifts in customer preferences, or an economic downturn or the inability to complete a public offering or other financing may adversely affect the return on, or the recovery of, our investment in them. Investment in such companies therefore involves a high degree of business and financial risk, which can result in substantial losses and, accordingly, should be considered highly speculative. No assurance can be given that some of our investments will not result in substantial or complete losses.

Substantially all of these securities will be subject to legal and other restrictions on resale or will otherwise be less liquid than publicly-traded securities. The illiquidity of these investments may make it difficult for us to sell such investments at advantageous times and prices or in a timely manner. In addition, if we are required to liquidate all or a portion of our portfolio quickly, we may realize significantly less than the value at which we previously have recorded our investments. We also may face other restrictions on our ability to liquidate an investment in a portfolio company to the extent that we or one of our affiliates have material non-public information regarding such portfolio company.

The long-term character of our Existing Portfolio investments may negatively impact their current return and capital gains.

Our Existing Portfolio investments yield a current return for most of their lives, but generally only produce a capital gain, if any, from an accompanying equity feature (which typically consists of a warrant for the purchase of common equity securities) after five to eight years. Both the current yield and a capital gain must be achieved on most investments in order to meet our investment goals. There can be no assurance that either a current return or capital gain will actually be achieved on our investments.

Our portfolio companies may incur debt that ranks equally with, or senior to, our investments in such companies.

Portfolio companies in which we invest usually will have, or may be permitted to incur, debt that ranks senior to, or equally with, our investments, including debt investments. As a result, payments on such securities may have to be made before we receive any payments on our investments. For example, these debt instruments may provide that the holders are entitled to receive payment of interest or principal on or before the dates on which we are entitled to receive payments with respect to our investments. These debt instruments will usually prohibit the portfolio companies from paying interest on or repaying our investments in the event and during the continuance of a default under such debt. In the event of insolvency, liquidation, dissolution, reorganization or bankruptcy of a portfolio company, holders of debt instruments ranking senior to our investment in that portfolio company would typically be entitled to receive payment in full before we receive any distribution in respect of our investment. After repaying its

senior creditors, a portfolio company may not have any remaining assets to use to repay its obligation to us. In the case of debt ranking equally with our investments, we would have to share on an equal basis any distributions with other creditors holding such debt in the event of an insolvency, liquidation, dissolution, reorganization or bankruptcy of the relevant portfolio company.

There may be circumstances where our debt investments could be subordinated to claims of other creditors or we could be subject to lender liability claims.

If one of our Existing Portfolio companies were to go bankrupt, even though we may have structured our interest as senior debt, depending on the facts and circumstances, including the extent to which we actually provided managerial

- 9 -

assistance to that portfolio company, a bankruptcy court might recharacterize our debt holding and subordinate all or a portion of our claim to that of other creditors. In addition, lenders can be subject to lender liability claims for actions taken by them where they become too involved in the borrower's business or exercise control over the borrower. It is possible that we could become subject to a lender's liability claim, including as a result of actions taken if we actually render significant managerial assistance.

We expect our debt investments will generally be unsecured and even if we make a secured loan, if the assets securing a loan we make decrease in value, we may not have sufficient collateral to cover losses.

Generally, our debt investments in Existing Portfolio companies that we make are unsecured. However, when we take a security interest in the available assets of a portfolio company, there is a risk that the collateral securing our investment may decrease in value over time, may be difficult to sell in a timely manner, may be difficult to appraise and may fluctuate in value based upon the success of the business and market conditions, including as a result of the inability of the portfolio company to raise additional capital, and, in some circumstances, our lien could be subordinated to claims of other creditors. In addition, a deterioration in a portfolio company's financial condition and prospects, including its inability to raise additional capital, may be accompanied by a deterioration in the value of the collateral for the investment. Moreover, we may not have a first lien position on the collateral. Consequently, the fact that investment is secured does not guarantee that we will receive principal and interest payments according to the investment's terms or that we will be able to collect on the investment should we be forced to enforce our remedies. In addition, a portion of the assets securing our investment may be in the form of intellectual property, if any, inventory and equipment and, to a lesser extent, cash and accounts receivable. Intellectual property, if any, that is securing our investment could lose value if, among other things, the company's rights to the intellectual property are challenged or if the company's license to the intellectual property is revoked or expires. Inventory may not be adequate to secure our investment if our valuation of the inventory at the time we made the loan was not accurate or if there is a reduction in the demand for the inventory. Similarly, any equipment securing our loan may not provide us with the anticipated security if there are changes in technology or advances in new equipment that render the particular equipment obsolete or of limited value or if the company fails to adequately maintain or repair the equipment. Any one or more of the preceding factors could materially impair our ability to recover principal in a foreclosure.

The lack of liquidity in our Existing Portfolio investments may adversely affect our business, and if we need to sell any of our investments, we may not be able to do so at a favorable price. As a result, we may suffer losses.

The Existing Portfolio generally consists of investments in debt securities with terms of two to ten years, which we generally hold until maturity, and we do not expect that our related holdings of equity securities in the Existing Portfolio will provide us with liquidity opportunities in the near-term. The illiquidity of these investments may make it difficult for us to sell these investments when desired. In addition, if we are required to liquidate all or a portion of our portfolio quickly, we may realize significantly less than the value at which we had previously recorded these investments. As a result, we do not expect to achieve liquidity in our investments in the near-term. However, to maintain our election to be regulated as a BDC, we may have to dispose of investments if we do not satisfy one or more of the applicable criteria under the 1940 Act. Our investments are usually subject to contractual or legal restrictions on resale or are otherwise illiquid because there is no established trading market for such investments. The illiquidity of a majority of our investments may make it difficult for us to dispose of them at a favorable price, and, as a result, we may suffer losses.

We will be exposed to risks associated with changes in interest rates.

Generally, when market interest rates rise, the values of debt securities decline, and vice versa. During periods of declining interest rates, the issuer of a security may exercise its option to prepay principal earlier than scheduled, forcing us to reinvest in lower yielding securities. This is known as call or prepayment risk. Lower grade securities

frequently have call features that allow the issuer to repurchase the security prior to its stated maturity. An issuer may redeem a lower grade obligation if the issuer can refinance the debt at a lower cost due to declining interest rates or an improvement in the credit standing of the issuer.

To protect or maintain our portfolio investments, we may need to increase our investments in portfolio companies.

Following our initial investment, we may make additional debt and equity investments in portfolio companies ("follow-on investments") to increase our investment in a successful portfolio company, to exercise securities that were

- 10 -

acquired in the original financing, to preserve our proportionate ownership when a subsequent financing is planned or to protect our initial investment when such portfolio company's performance does not meet expectations.

There is no assurance that we will make, or will have sufficient funds to make, follow-on investments. Additionally, we are subject to limitations relating to our BDC status which may limit our ability to make additional investments in portfolio companies. Any decisions not to make a follow-on investment or any inability on our part to make such an investment may have a negative impact on a portfolio company in need of such an investment, may result in a missed opportunity for us to increase our participation in a successful operation, or may reduce the expected yield on the investment.

At our annual shareholder meeting held on November 30, 2010, shareholders voted against giving us the ability to raise additional capital through the issuance of shares of common stock at a price below our then-current net asset value per share. In addition shareholders voted against allowing us the ability to issue warrants, options or rights to subscribe for or convert into common stock. Without these authorizations to sell shares at below net asset value or issue options or warrants, our ability to raise funding through the capital markets is highly unlikely.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

#### Item 2. Properties.

MACC does not own or lease any properties or other tangible assets. Its business premises and equipment are furnished by EAM. EAM is compensated for its provision of the business premises and equipment to MACC through the management fees paid by MACC to EAM.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

There are no items to report.

Item 4. (Removed and Reserved).

#### PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

#### Shareholders

MACC had 1,706 record holders of its common stock at October 15, 2010. MACC does not currently have an equity compensation plan.

#### Dividends

MACC has no history of paying cash dividends and during fiscal year 2010 MACC did not declare a dividend payment. The payment of dividends, if any, in the future is within the discretion of the Board and will depend upon MACC's earnings, capital requirements, financial condition and other relevant factors. MACC does not presently have any type of dividend reinvestment plan.

#### Market Prices

The common stock of MACC is traded on the over-the-counter market through the Over-The-Counter Quotation Board ("OTCQB") under the symbol "MACC.PK." At the close of business on December 15, 2010, the bid price for shares of MACC's common stock was \$0.85. The following high and low bid quotations for the shares during each quarterly period ended on the date shown below of MACC's fiscal years 2010 and 2009 were taken from quotations provided to MACC by the National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotation ("NASDAQ") where MACC traded under the symbol "MACC" until September 15, 2010:

	High	Low
September 30, 2008	\$ 2.16	1.20
December 31, 2008	1.46	0.50
March 31, 2009	0.84	0.52
June 30, 2009	1.74	0.40
September 30, 2009	1.15	0.65

December 31, 2009	0.96	0.40
March 31, 2010	0.90	0.52
June 30, 2010	0.77	0.54
September 30, 2010*	1.02	0.49

- 12 -

\*MACC began trading on the OTCQB effective September 15, 2010.

Such over-the-counter market quotations reflect inter-dealer prices without retail markup, markdown or commission and may not represent actual transaction.

Moreover, below is a chart comparing the semi-annual percentage change in cumulative stockholder return on the Common Stock of MACC since September 30, 2004, with the cumulative total return over the same period of (i) the NASDAQ Stock Market Total Return Index (U.S. Companies), and (ii) MACC's peer group selected in good faith by MACC and which it composed of the following ten business development companies or other funds known by MACC to have similar investment objectives to the Corporation: Ares Capital Corporation (ARCC), Brantley Capital Corporation (BBDC), Capital Southwest Corp (CSWC), Equus Total Return Inc. (EQS), Gladstone Investment Corporation (GAIN), Harris & Harris Group, Inc. (TINY), MVC Capital (MVC), NGP Capital Resources Company (NGPC), Rand Capital Corp (RAND), and Winfield Capital Corp (WCAP) (the "Peer Group").

In the graph, the comparison assumes \$100 was invested on October 1, 2005, in shares of MACC's Common Stock and in each of the indices. The comparison is based upon the closing market bid price for shares of MACC's Common Stock, and assumes the reinvestment of all dividends, if any. The returns of each of the companies in the Peer Group are weighted according to the respective company's stock market capitalization at the beginning of each period for which a return is indicated.

#### Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

Selected Financial Data for Fiscal Years ended September 30:

		2010	2009	2008	2007	2006
Investment expense, net	\$	(774,214)	(576,810)	(447,791)	(786,487)	(1,171,152)
Net realized (loss)gain or investments	1	(3,185,785)	(2,444,130)	687,269	1,351,456	3,645
Net change in unrealized depreciation/ appreciation on investments		2,098,690	395,347	(1,294,629)	(662,393)	(879,234)
Realized loss on other assets				(30,678)		
Net change in net assets from operations	\$	(1,861,309))	(2,625,593)	(1,085,829)	(97,424)	(2,046,741)
Net change in net assets from operations per common share		(0.761)	(1.061)	(0.441)	(0.041)	(0.831)
Total assets	\$	9,574,785	12,516,519	15,313,877	18,008,787	22,830,055
Total long term debt	\$	3,367,928	4,618,659	4,750,405	6,108,373	10,790,000

1 Computed using 2,464,621 shares outstanding at September 30, 2010, September 30, 2009, September 30, 2008, September 30, 2007 and September 30, 2006.

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation.

#### Overview and Looking Ahead

Fiscal year 2010 was another challenging year for MACC. MACC's stated plan for fiscal year 2010 was to make no new investments in its legacy investment strategy, continue to harvest the value of the investments within the Existing Portfolio, repay its outstanding debt, execute a rights offering and begin making investments in the new portfolio strategy under EAM. Although capital markets in general have continued to improve, the Company and many of its portfolio companies continue to feel the effects of the severe disruptions of the capital markets and economy from 2008 and 2009. Only one Existing Portfolio company was sold during the year while certain portfolio assets were written down to reflect the deterioration of performance of those portfolio companies. MACC also was unable to execute a rights offering and therefore no additional capital was raised to allow for the initiation of the New Portfolio strategy under EAM. The Board has extended the existing advisory agreements while the Board evaluates and examines the future direction of the Company.

MACC continued to experience pressure on its operating cashflow in 2010 as income from existing portfolio assets were insufficient to cover operating expenses. Proceeds from the portfolio sale were applied to outstanding debt and toward operating cashflow needs. MACC's investment advisor, EAM, continued to voluntarily waive its portion of the management fee in recognition of the fact that the new portfolio strategy continued to be on hold and to help alleviate MACC's cashflow difficulties.

Operating expenses have been funded primarily from the sale of a portfolio company, dividends, interest and other distributions from MACC's portfolio companies and from MACC's bank financing. MACC continues to have an ongoing need to raise cash from portfolio sales to fund operations and pay down outstanding debt.

- 14 -

At the Company's annual shareholder meeting held on November 30, 2010, shareholders voted against giving the Company the ability to raise additional capital through the issuance of shares of Company common stock at a price below its then-current net asset value per share or the ability to issue warrants, options or rights to subscribe for or convert into Company common stock. Without the authorization to sell shares at below net asset value, the Company's ability to raise funding through the capital markets has become very limited. In addition, at the Company's annual shareholder meeting shareholders voted against approving the Amended and Restated investment Advisory Agreement between the Company and its current investment adviser, EAM and against approval of the Amended and Restated Subadvisory Agreement with IAIA. The existing advisory agreements have been extended by the Board.

The Board of Directors is evaluating appropriate next steps based on shareholder actions. The Board will continue to review a number of alternatives, including seeking shareholder approval to liquidate. At same time, we will continue to harvest Existing Portfolio assets to continue the repayment of our outstanding debt.

At September 30, 2010, MACC's note payable with CRB&T had an outstanding principal amount of \$3,367,928 and was due and payable January 10, 2011. On December 13, 2010, the Company paid \$693,263 to CRB&T (the "Bank") in the form of a principal payment on the outstanding note payable with the Bank. The payment was made from proceeds of a portfolio company exit transaction and in accordance with the terms outlined in the note payable. Subsequent to the payment, the balance of the note payable on December 13, 2010 was \$2,663,029. It is expected that MACC will enter into an extension of the note payable on or about January 10, 2011 which will extend the maturity date of the Term Loan to July 10, 2011. MACC will need to either extend the due date on the note payable or consider additional sources of financing and additional sales of investments in order to meet current payment and operating requirements. No assurance can be given that MACC will be successful in its efforts to extend its current financing arrangement in the near term and accordingly these facts raise substantial doubt about MACC's ability to continue as a going concern.

MACC continues to seek additional cash through future sales of portfolio equity and debt securities. Absent financing amendments to the current note payable or additional sources of financing, current working capital and cash will not be adequate for operations at their current levels. If such efforts are not successful, MACC may need to liquidate its current investment portfolio, to the extent possible, which could result in significant realized losses due to the current economic conditions. No assurance can be given that MACC will be successful in its efforts to extend its current financing arrangement in the near term and accordingly these facts raise substantial doubt about MACC's ability to continue as a going concern.

## **RESULTS OF OPERATIONS**

MACC's primary activities in 2010 were consistent with the legacy portfolio strategy. MACC made no investments in new portfolio companies and focused on selling Existing Portfolio assets while closely monitoring and reducing where possible current expenses. Total investment income includes income from interest and dividends. Investment expense, net represents total investment income minus net operating expenses. The main objective of portfolio company investments is to achieve capital appreciation and realized gains in the portfolio. These gains and losses are not included in investment expense, net and are reported as separate line items.

Fiscal 2010, Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2008

For the years ended

September 30,

2010 2009

2008

Total investment income	\$ 395,339	586,989		955,563
Total operating expenses	(1,169,553)	(1,163,799	)	(1,403,354)
Investment expense, net	(774,214)	(576,810	)	(447,791)
Net realized (loss) gain on investments	(3,185,785)	(2,444,130	)	687,269
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on				
investments	2,098,690	395,347		(1,294,629)
Realized loss on other assets				(30,678)
Net (loss) gain on investments and other assets	(1,087,095)	(2,048,783	)	(638,038)
Net change in net assets from operations	\$ (1,861,309)	(2,625,593	)	(1,085,829)
Net asset value:				
Beginning of year	3.17	4.23		4.67
End of year	2.41	3.17		4.23

- 15 -

#### Total Investment Income

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, total investment income was \$395,339, a decrease of 33% from fiscal year 2009 total investment income of \$586,989. The decrease during the current year was the net result of a decrease in interest income of \$180,816, or 46%, and a decrease in dividend income of \$3,181, or 2%. The decrease in interest income primarily relates to the repayments of principal on debt portfolio securities, one debt portfolio security which has been placed on non-accrual status during fiscal year 2010, and one debt portfolio security for which the prior period interest accrual has been reserved. This decrease was offset as one debt portfolio security began paying interest in 2010, that had been on non-accrual status in 2009. Dividend income for fiscal year 2010 represents dividends received on three existing portfolio companies, one of which was a distribution from a limited liability company, as compared to dividends received on three portfolio companies, two of which were distributions from limited liability companies, during fiscal year 2009. The timing and amount of dividend income is difficult to predict.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009, total investment income was \$586,989, a decrease of 39% from fiscal year 2008 total investment income of \$955,563. The decrease during the current year was the net result of a decrease in interest income of \$209,156, or 35%, and a decrease in dividend income of \$167,065, or 47%. MACC attributes the decrease in interest income primarily to the repayments of principal on debt portfolio securities and on two debt portfolio securities which have been placed on non-accrual of interest status during fiscal year 2009. Dividend income for fiscal year 2009 represents dividends received on three existing portfolio companies, two of which were distributions from limited liability companies, as compared to dividends received on four portfolio companies, two of which were distributions from limited liability companies, during fiscal year 2008. The timing and amount of dividend income is difficult to predict.

#### Net Operating Expenses

Net operating expenses of MACC increased by 1% in fiscal year 2010 to \$1,169,553 from \$1,163,799 in fiscal year 2009. The relative increase in net operating expenses is the net result of decreases of \$45,041, or 15%, in interest expense, \$109,190, or 49%, in management fees (after considering fee waivers), and increases of \$129,976, or 43%, in professional fees, and \$20,009, or 6%, in other operating expenses. Interest expense decreased due to a decrease in the principal balance of the Note Payable with Cedar Rapids Bank & Trust Company in fiscal year 2010 as compared to fiscal year 2009. Management fees decreased due to the investment adviser, Eudaimonia Asset Management, LLC ("EAM"), having voluntarily waived its management fee of 1% of net assets, effective in May 2009, for an indefinite period. The remaining 1% of the management fee continues to be paid to our subadviser, InvestAmerica Investment Advisors, Inc. ("InvestAmerica"). Professional fees increased primarily due to the legal costs in 2010 compared to 2009 where the costs were related to various capital raising initiatives of the Company. Other operating expenses increased due to the write off of deferred costs associated with our unsuccessful efforts to gain approval for a rights offering partially offset by a decrease in directors fees due to fewer Board of Director meetings held in fiscal 2010.

Net operating expenses of MACC decreased by 17% in fiscal year 2009 to \$1,163,799 from \$1,403,354 in fiscal year 2008. The relative decrease in net operating expenses is the net result of decreases of \$104,381, or 26%, in interest expense, \$58,653, or 21%, in management fees, \$69,401, or 18%, in professional fees, and \$7,120, or 2%, in other operating expenses. Interest expense decreased due to a combination of the decrease in the interest rate and the principal balance of the Note Payable with the Bank in fiscal year 2009 as compared to fiscal year 2008. Management fees decreased due to the investment adviser, EAM, having voluntarily waived its management fee of 1% of net assets, effective in May, for an indefinite period. The remaining 1% of the management fee continues to be paid to our subadviser, InvestAmerica. Professional fees decreased primarily due to the absence of legal costs in 2009 compared to 2008 where the costs were related to changes in the investment advisory structure, the merger and exploration of capital raising options.

Investment Expense, Net

MACC had investment expense, net in fiscal year 2010 of \$774,214, an increase of 34% from investment expense, net of \$576,810 in fiscal year 2009. The increase in investment expense, net is the result of the decrease in investment income and the increase in net operating expenses described above.

MACC had investment expense, net in fiscal year 2009 of \$576,810, an increase of 29% from investment expense, net of \$447,791 in fiscal year 2008. The increase in investment expense, net is the result of the decrease in investment income and net operating expenses described above and the decrease of interest expense to \$303,794 in fiscal year 2009 from \$408,175 in fiscal year 2008.

Net Realized Gain (Loss) on Investments

MACC recorded a net realized loss on investments in fiscal 2010 of \$3,185,785 as compared to a net realized loss of \$2,444,130 in fiscal year 2009. The fiscal year 2010 net realized loss is the net result of a realized gain of \$540,579 from the restructuring of one portfolio investment, a realized loss of \$562,203 from the sale of one portfolio company and a realized loss of \$3,164,161 on the write-off of three portfolio investments which had been previously written down to \$1 through unrealized losses. Management does not attempt to maintain a comparable level of realized gains quarter to quarter but instead attempts to maximize total investment portfolio appreciation through realizing gains in the disposition of securities. Under the Advisory Agreement, the Investment Adviser is entitled to be paid an incentive fee, which is calculated as a percentage of the excess of MACC's realized gains in a particular period, over the sum of net realized losses, unrealized depreciation, and operating losses during the same period. As a result, the timing of realized gains, realized losses and unrealized depreciation can have an effect on the amount of the incentive fee payable to the Investment Adviser under the Advisory Agreement.

MACC recorded a net realized loss on investments in fiscal 2009 of \$2,444,130 as compared to a net realized gain of \$687,269 in fiscal year 2008. The fiscal year 2009 net realized loss is the net result of \$245,179 of realized gains from the sale of two portfolio companies, a realized gain of \$1,620 from final distributions on two portfolio company, a realized loss of \$99,992 from the sale of one portfolio company, a realized loss of \$1,923,610 on the write-off of two portfolio investments which had been previously written down to \$1 through unrealized losses, and a realized loss of \$667,327 on the partial write-off of one portfolio company. Management does not attempt to maintain a comparable level of realized gains quarter to quarter but instead attempts to maximize total investment portfolio appreciation through realizing gains in the disposition of securities. Under the Advisory Agreement, the Investment Adviser is entitled to be paid an incentive fee, which is calculated as a percentage of the excess of MACC's realized gains in a particular period, over the sum of net realized losses, unrealized depreciation, and operating losses during the same period. As a result, the timing of realized gains, realized losses and unrealized depreciation can have an effect on the amount of the incentive fee payable to the Investment Adviser under the Advisory Agreement.

Changes in Unrealized Depreciation/Appreciation of Investments

MACC had unrealized depreciation of \$444,945 at September 30, 2010, a change of \$2,098,690 from the \$2,543,635 of unrealized depreciation at September 30, 2009. This, along with the net realized loss of \$3,185,785, resulted in a net loss on investments for fiscal year 2010 of \$1,087,095, as compared to a net loss on investments of \$2,048,783 for fiscal year 2009. The fiscal year 2010 change in unrealized depreciation/appreciation is the net effect of increases in fair value of three portfolio companies totaling \$911,926, decreases in fair value of eight portfolio companies totaling \$1,986,353, the reversal of \$3,173,117 of depreciation from the write off of three portfolio investments resulting in a realized loss.

MACC had unrealized depreciation of \$2,543,635 at September 30, 2009, a change of \$395,347 from the \$2,938,982 of unrealized depreciation at September 30, 2008. This, along with the net realized loss of \$2,444,130, resulted in a net loss on investments for fiscal year 2009 of \$2,048,783, as compared to a net loss on investments of \$607,360 for fiscal year 2008. The fiscal year 2009 change in unrealized depreciation/appreciation is the net effect of increases in fair value of three portfolio companies totaling \$796,398, decreases in fair value of nine portfolio companies totaling \$2,517,636, the reversal of appreciation of \$200,000 in one portfolio investment from its sale resulting in a realized gain, the reversal of appreciation of \$24,951 in one portfolio investment from its sale resulting in a realized loss, the reversal of \$1,923,608 of depreciation from the write off of two portfolio investments resulting in a realized loss, and the reversal of \$417,928 depreciation resulting from the partial write off of one portfolio investment resulting in a realized loss.

- 17 -

Net change in unrealized depreciation/appreciation on investments represents the change for the period in the unrealized appreciation, net of unrealized depreciation on MACC's total investment portfolio. When MACC increases the fair value of a portfolio investment above its cost, the unrealized appreciation for the portfolio as a whole increases, and when MACC decreases the fair value of a portfolio investment below its cost, unrealized depreciation for the portfolio as a whole increases. See accounting policy for determining fair value on investments below under "Determination of Net Asset Value." When MACC sells an appreciated portfolio investment for a gain, unrealized appreciation for the portfolio as a whole decreases as the gain is realized. Similarly, when MACC sells or writes off a depreciated portfolio investment for a loss, unrealized depreciation for the portfolio as a whole decreases as the loss is realized.

Net Change in Net Assets from Operations

As a result of the items described above, MACC experienced a decrease of \$1,861,309 in net assets during fiscal year 2010, and the resulting net asset value per share was \$2.41 at September 30, 2010, as compared to \$3.17 at September 30, 2009 and \$4.23 at September 30, 2008. Management attributes these results to the write-down of portfolio assets and the operating loss incurred in fiscal 2010. Although MACC had three portfolio investments increase in value during fiscal year 2010, eight portfolio companies required a write-down in valuation.

The current economic challenges and restrictive credit environment may pose significant challenges to the Existing Portfolio operating performance and the ability to exit Existing Portfolio positions. Many factors such as the availability of credit, continued economic struggles, volatile commodity markets, all could have major impacts on the Existing Portfolio performance.

### FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

MACC relies upon several sources to fund its operating and investment activities, including MACC's cash and money market accounts, and proceeds from the sale of portfolio assets, as further described below.

As of September 30, 2010, MACC's cash and money market accounts totaled \$135,094. MACC has the Term Loan in the amount of \$3,367,928 with the Bank. The Term Loan is due and payable January 10, 2011. On December 13, 2010, the Company paid \$693,263 to the Bank in the form of a principal payment on the outstanding note payable with the Bank. The payment was made from proceeds of a portfolio company exit transaction and in accordance with the terms outlined in the note payable. Subsequent to the payment, the balance of the note payable on December 13, 2010 was \$2,663,029. It is expected that MACC will enter into an extension of the Term Loan on or about January 10, 2011 which will extend the maturity date of the Term Loan to July 10, 2011.

Currently MACC does not have sufficient cash flows from operations to pay current operating expenses and to repay the term loan when it is due. MACC therefore continues to have an ongoing need to raise cash from portfolio sales and will need to either extend the due date on the current term loan or seek additional sources of financing in order to meet current payment and operating requirements. To date an extension on the term loan and additional financing has not been secured, accordingly these facts raise substantial doubt about MACC's ability to continue as a going concern.

MACC held its annual meeting of shareholders on November 30, 2010 (the "Annual Meeting"). Among other things, at the Annual Meeting the shareholders re-elected the current members of the Board; however the shareholders did not approve:

Authorization for a reverse stock split of the Company's common stock;

To change the Company's name to "MACC Equities, Inc.";

Authorization to sell or otherwise issue shares of the Company's common stock at a price below its then-current net asset value per share;

Authorization to issue warrants, options or rights to subscribe for or convert into the Company's common stock;

- 18 -

Approval of the Amended and Restated Investment Advisory Agreement between the Company and its current investment adviser, EAM;

Approval of the Amended and Restated Subadvisory Agreement by and among MACC, EAM and IAIA.

MACC continues to seek additional cash through future sales of portfolio equity and debt securities. Absent financing amendments to the current note payable or additional sources of financing, current working capital and cash will not be adequate for operations at their current levels. If such efforts are not successful, MACC may need to liquidate its current investment portfolio, to the extent possible, which could result in significant realized losses due to the current economic conditions.

The following table shows MACC's significant contractual obligations as of September 30, 2010:

#### Payments due by period

**Contractual Obligations** 

		Less than			More than
	Total	1 Year	1-3 Years	3-5 Years	5 Years
Note Payable	\$ 3,367,928	3,367,928			
Incentive Fees Payable	\$ 16,361	16,361			

Although we believe we will be able to refinance the term loan, failure to do so or find alternative financing could pose significant financial risks to MACC given the relative illiquid nature of the Existing Portfolio. In addition, we anticipate that our current cash and money market accounts will not be adequate enough to fund our cash flow short-fall from operations during fiscal year 2011. We will need to liquidate portfolio assets to fund the operating cash short-fall. No assurance can be given that MACC will be successful in its efforts to extend its current financing arrangement or raise additional funding in the near term and accordingly these facts raise substantial doubt about MACC's ability to continue as a going concern.

#### PORTFOLIO ACTIVITY

MACC's primary business had been investing in and lending to businesses through investments in subordinated debt (generally with detachable equity warrants), preferred stock and common stock. As noted above, MACC did not make any investments in new portfolio companies in fiscal year 2010. The total portfolio value of the Existing Portfolio was \$9,226,650 and \$11,775,272 at September 30, 2010 and September 30, 2009, respectively. During fiscal year 2010, MACC invested \$72,342 in two follow-on investments in Existing Portfolio companies. The \$72,342 of investments were co-investments with another fund managed by InvestAmerica. When it makes any co-investment with these related funds, MACC follows certain procedures consistent with orders of the SEC for related party co-investments to mitigate conflict of interest issues.

#### VALUATION CHANGES

The following table presents those portfolio investments held at September 30, 2010 with respect to which the valuation changed from September 30, 2009:

	FAIR VALUE	
PORTFOLIO COMPANY	<b>SEPTEMBER 30, 2010</b>	SEPTEMBER 30, 2009(1)
	1,649,215	1,618,039

Aviation Manufacturing Group, LLC		
Detroit Tool Metal Products Co.	1,404,850	1,945,429
Feed Management Systems, Inc.	75,504	151,007
Linton Truss Corporation	9,336	75,036
Magnum Systems, Inc.	1,751,417	1,113,737
Monitronics International, Inc.	682,354	439,284
Morgan Ohare, Inc.	1,079,991	1,083,855
Portrait Displays, Inc.	509,833	637,292
SMWC Acquisition Co., Inc.	310,000	510,794
Spectrum Products, LLC	1,077,542	1,510,355
Superior Holding, Inc.	676,608	1,176,608

(1)September 30, 2009 valuations have been adjusted for additional amounts invested or partial disposition of the portfolio investment in 2010 for purposes of comparison.

- 19 -

#### CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

Investment in securities that are restricted and other securities for which quotations are not readily available are valued at fair value as determined by the Board of Directors. Such determination of fair values involved subjective judgments and estimates. Among the factors considered in determining the fair value of investments are the cost of the investment; developments, including recent financing transactions, since the acquisition of the investment; the financial condition and operating results of the portfolio company, comparisons of multiples of peer companies that are public, the long-term potential of the business of the portfolio company; market interest rates for similar debt securities; overall market conditions and other factors generally pertinent to the valuation of investments. When an external event such as a purchase transaction, public offering or subsequent equity sale occurs in connection with one of our portfolio companies, our board of directors uses the pricing indicated by the external event to corroborate and/or assist us in our valuation of our investment in such portfolio company. However, because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, those estimated values may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a ready market for the securities existed, and the differences could be material.

In the valuation process, MACC uses financial information received monthly, quarterly, and annually from its portfolio companies which includes both audited and unaudited financial statements. This information is used to determine financial condition, performance, and valuation of the portfolio investments.

Realization of the carrying value of investments is subject to future developments. Investment transactions are recorded on the trade date and identified cost is used to determine realized gains and losses. Under the provisions of authoritative guidance, the fair value of loans and investments in portfolio securities on February 15, 1995, MACC's fresh-start date, is considered the cost basis for financial statement purposes.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

#### DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE

The net asset value per share of MACC's outstanding common stock is determined quarterly, as soon as practicable after and as of the end of each calendar quarter, by dividing the value of total assets minus total liabilities by the total number of shares outstanding at the date as of which the determination is made.

In calculating the value of total assets, securities that are traded in the over-the-counter market or on a stock exchange are valued in accordance with the current guidelines of the SEC. Under SEC Regulations, publicly-traded equity securities are valued by taking the close (or bid price in the case of over-the-counter equity securities) for the valuation date. MACC did not have any publicly-traded equity securities as of September 30, 2010.

All other investments are valued at fair value as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has determined that all other investments will be valued initially at cost, but such valuation will be subject to quarterly adjustments and on such other interim periods as are justified by material portfolio company events if the Board of Directors determines in good faith that cost no longer represents fair value.

We currently have a portfolio of debt and equity securities for which no regular trading market exists. The fair value of these investments may not be readily determinable. We value these investments quarterly at fair value as determined in good faith under the direction of our board of directors pursuant to a valuation policy and consistently applied valuation process utilizing the input of our investment advisers and audit committee. The types of factors that

may be considered in fair value pricing of these investments include the nature and realizable value of any collateral, the portfolio company's ability to make payments and its earnings, the markets in which the portfolio company does business, comparison to more liquid securities, indices and other market related inputs, and other relevant factors. Such valuations,

- 20 -

particularly valuations of private securities and private companies, are inherently uncertain, and these valuations may fluctuate over short periods of time and may be based on estimates. As a result, our determinations of fair value may i) differ materially from the values that would have been used if a readily available market for these investments existed and ii) differ materially from the amounts we realize on any disposition of such investments. Our net asset value could be adversely affected if our determinations regarding the fair value of these investments were materially higher than the values that we ultimately realize upon the disposal of such investments. In addition, decreases in the market values or fair values of our investments are recorded as unrealized depreciation. Continued declines in prices and liquidity in the debt markets, particularly for restricted securities acquired directly from issuers in private transactions, could result in substantial unrealized/realized losses, which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We are required to record our assets at fair value, as determined in good faith by our board of directors in accordance with our valuation policy. As a result, volatility in the capital markets may adversely affect our valuations and our net asset value, even if we intend to hold respective investments to maturity. Volatility or dislocation in the capital markets may depress our stock price below our net asset value per share and create a challenging environment in which to raise debt and equity capital. As a business development company, we are generally not able to issue additional shares of our common stock at a price less than net asset value without first obtaining approval for such issuance from our stockholders and our independent directors. At our annual shareholder meeting held on November 30, 2010, shareholders voted against giving us the ability to raise additional capital through the issuance of shares of common stock at a price below our then-current net asset value per share. In addition, shareholders voted against allowing us the ability to issue warrants, options or rights to subscribe for or convert into common stock. Without these authorizations to sell shares at below net asset value or issue options or warrants, our ability to raise funding through the capital markets is highly unlikely.

Additionally, our ability to incur indebtedness is limited by applicable regulations such that our assets coverage under the 1940 Act must equal to at least 200% of total indebtedness immediately after each time we incur indebtedness. Shrinking portfolio values negatively impact our ability to borrow our ability to borrow additional funds under our credit facility because our net asset value is reduced for purposes of the 200% asset leverage test. If the fair value of our assets declines substantially, we may fail to maintain the asset coverage ratios stipulate by the 1940 Act, which could, in turn, cause us to lose our status as a business development company and materially impair our business operations.

The significant disruption in the capital markets has had and may continue to have a negative effect on the valuations of our investments and on the potential for liquidity events involving our investments. The debt capital that will be available to use, if at all, may be at a higher cost and on less favorable terms and conditions in the future. A prolonged inability to raise capital will further delay any opportunity to execute the New Portfolio strategy, and/or could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial conditions or results of operations. As discussed above, our shareholders voted against giving us the ability to either raise additional capital through the issuance of shares of common stock at a price below our then-current net asset value per share or through the issuance of warrants, options or rights to subscribe for or convert into common stock. Without these authorizations to sell shares at below net asset value or issue options or warrants, our ability to raise funding through the capital markets is highly unlikely.

The current economic conditions generally and the disruptions in the capital markets in particular have decreased liquidity, where available. The longer these conditions persist, the greater the probability that these factors could reduce our ability to effectively liquidate portfolio positions, increase our cost and significantly limit our access to debt and equity capital, and thus have an adverse effect on our operations and financial results. Many of our portfolio companies may also be susceptible to the economic downturn, which could affect the ability of one or more of our portfolio companies to repay our loans or engage in a liquidity event, such as a sale or recapitalization.

A continued economic downturn could also disproportionately impact some of the industries in which we invest, causing us to be more vulnerable to further losses in our portfolio. Therefore, the number of our non-performing assets could increase and the fair market value of our portfolio decrease during these periods. The economic downturn has affected the availability of credit generally and may prevent us from replacing or renewing our credit facility on reasonable terms, if at all. If market instability persists or intensifies, we may continue to experience difficulty in raising capital.

Recent market conditions have also affected the trading price of our common stock, which, effective September 15, 2010, is quoted only on OTCQB, and our ability to finance new investments through the issuance of equity as evidenced

- 21 -

by the actions of our shareholders (as discussed above). The economic downturn may also continue to decrease the value of collateral securing the Note Payable, as well as the value of our equity investments.

For the year ended September 30, 2010, we recorded net unrealized appreciation on our portfolio of investments of \$2,098,690, of which the increase was primarily due to the reversal of unrealized depreciation from the write off of three portfolio investments resulting in a realized loss. Overall, the investments held in the portfolio as of the reporting date generally reflect a decrease in fair value and we may continue to see further decreases in the value of our portfolio in the event that the economic downturn continues and the general illiquidity of capital markets continues.

We are also subject to financial market risks from changes in market interest rates. The Note Payable is subject to a variable interest rate that is based on an independent index. Therefore, general interest rate fluctuations may have a materially adverse effect on our investment expense.

#### QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

MACC is subject to market risk from changes in market prices of publicly-traded equity securities held from time to time in the MACC investment portfolio. At September 30, 2010, MACC had no publicly-traded equity securities in the MACC investment portfolio.

MACC is also subject to financial market risks from changes in market interest rates. MACC currently has an outstanding note payable with a variable interest rate that is based on an independent index. Therefore, general interest rate fluctuations may have a materially adverse effect on our investment expense.

We are also subject to financial market risk from the short term nature of our credit facilities in combination with current market conditions and the relatively illiquid nature of our Existing Portfolio. Our Note Payable is due January 10, 2011. Given the currently challenging market environment as discussed elsewhere, we may have difficultly refinancing our Note Payable, or finding alternative sources of financing. Failure to refinance the Note Payable could result in significant financial difficulties for us including the seizure and sale of Existing Portfolio assets at prices which would likely be at prices significantly less than fair value. Further, the cost of financing could be significantly more costly than our current financing which could have a material impact on our financial condition.

#### PORTFOLIO RISKS

Pursuant to Section 64(b)(1) of the 1940 Act, a BDC is required to describe the risk factors involved in an investment in the securities of such company due to the nature of MACC's investment portfolio. Accordingly, MACC states that:

The securities of MACC consist primarily of securities issued by small, privately held companies. Generally, little or no public information is available concerning the companies in which MACC is currently invested in, and MACC must rely on the diligence of the Investment Adviser to obtain the information necessary for MACC's investment decisions. In order to maintain their status as a BDC, MACC must invest at least 70% of its total assets in the types of portfolio investments described by Section 55(a) of the 1940 Act, as amended. These investments generally are securities purchased in private placement transactions from small privately held companies. Typically, the success or failure of such companies depends on the management talents and efforts of one person or a small group of persons, so that the death, disability or resignation of such person or persons could have a materially adverse impact on such companies. Moreover, smaller companies frequently have smaller product lines and smaller market shares than larger companies and may be more vulnerable to economic downturns. Because these companies will generally have highly leveraged capital structures, reduced cash flows resulting from an economic downturn may adversely affect the return on, or the recovery of, MACC's investments. Investment in these companies therefore involves a high degree of

business and financial risk, which can result in substantial losses and should be considered speculative.

MACC's Existing Portfolio investments primarily consist of securities acquired from the issuers in private transactions, which are usually subject to restrictions on resale and are generally illiquid. No established trading market generally exists with regard to such securities, and most of such securities are not available for sale to the public without registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, which involves significant delay and expense.

The Existing Portfolio investments of MACC are generally long-term in nature. Some existing investments do not bear a current yield and a return on such investments will be earned only after the investment matures or is sold.

- 22 -

Although most investments are structured so as to return a current yield throughout most of their term, these investments will typically produce gains only when sold in five to seven years. There can be no assurance, however, that any of MACC's investments will produce current yields or gains.

### **OPERATIONS RISKS**

MACC generally relies on portfolio investment divestitures and liquidity events, as well as increases in fair value of portfolio investments, to provide for increases in net asset value in any period. MACC typically relies on the sale of portfolio companies in negotiated transactions and on the initial public offering of portfolio company securities to provide for portfolio investment divestitures and liquidity events. Accordingly, a general contraction in the markets for corporate acquisitions and/or initial public offerings could adversely affect MACC's ability to realize capital gains, if any, from the sale of its Existing Portfolio company securities. The SEC guidelines under which MACC operates permit the MACC Board of Directors to determine increases in fair value of unliquidated Existing Portfolio investments based upon a number of factors, including subsequent financings provided to Existing Portfolio companies could adversely affect MACC's Existing Portfolio companies could adversely affect MACC's Existing Portfolio companies could adversely affect MACC's Existing Portfolio investments based upon a number of factors, including subsequent financings provided to Existing Portfolio companies could adversely affect MACC's Existing Portfolio companies could adversely affect MACC's ability to achieve increases, if any, in fair value of its Existing Portfolio investments.

#### Interest Rate Risks

MACC faces risks in relation to changes in prevailing market interest rates. First, at September 30, 2010, MACC had outstanding \$3,367,928 in principal amount of a note payable, which matures in January of 2011. This note has a variable rate of interest, and accordingly, changes in market interest rates will have an effect on the amount of interest paid by MACC with respect to the note. At September 30, 2010, the interest rate on the note was 6.0%.

Second, MACC's Existing Portfolio companies have or may issue debt senior to MACC's investment. The payment of principal and interest due on MACC's investment, therefore, will generally be subordinate to payments due on any such senior debt. Moreover, senior debt typically bears interest at a floating rate, whereas MACC's investments generally do not. Any increase in market interest rates may put significant economic pressure on those Existing Portfolio companies that have issued senior debt which bears interest at a floating rate. Accordingly, MACC's ability to achieve net operating income and generally to realize gains from its Existing Portfolio investments may be adversely affected by an increase in market interest rates.

#### Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

MACC is subject to market risk from changes in market prices of publicly-traded equity securities held from time to time in the MACC investment portfolio. At September 30, 2010, MACC had no publicly-traded equity securities in the MACC investment portfolio.

MACC is also subject to financial market risks from changes in market interest rates. MACC currently has an outstanding note payable with a variable interest rate that is based on an independent index. Although this independent index is subject to changes, the maximum increase or decrease in the interest rate at any one time will not exceed 1%. General interest rate fluctuations may therefore have a material adverse effect on MACC's net investment income.

#### Portfolio Risks

Pursuant to Section 64(b)(1) of the 1940 Act, a BDC is required to describe the risk factors involved in an investment in the securities of such company due to the nature of MACC's investment portfolio. Please refer to Item 1A above for a description of those risks.

### **Operations Risks**

MACC has generally relied on portfolio investment divestitures and liquidity events, as well as increases in fair value of portfolio investments, to provide for increases in net asset value in any period. MACC typically relies on the sale of portfolio companies in negotiated transactions and on the initial public offering of portfolio company securities to provide

for portfolio investment divestitures and liquidity events. Accordingly, a general contraction in the markets for corporate acquisitions and/or initial public offerings could adversely affect MACC's ability to realize capital gains, if any, from the sale of its Existing Portfolio company securities. The SEC guidelines under which MACC operates permit the Board to determine increases in fair value of unliquidated Existing Portfolio investments based upon a number of factors, including subsequent financings provided to Existing Portfolio companies. Accordingly, decreases in the supply of additional capital to MACC's Existing Portfolio companies could adversely affect MACC's ability to achieve increases, if any, in fair value of its Existing Portfolio investments.

# Interest Rate Risks

MACC faces risks in relation to changes in prevailing market interest rates. First, at September 30, 2010, MACC had outstanding \$3,367,928 in principal under the Term Loan, which matures in January of 2011. This note has a variable rate of interest, and accordingly, changes in market interest rates will have an effect on the amount of interest paid by MACC with respect to the note. The interest rate on the Term Loan was 6.0% as of September 30, 2010. It is expected that MACC will enter into an extension of the Term Loan on or about January 10, 2011 which will extend the maturity date of the Term Loan to July 10, 2011.

Second, MACC's Existing Portfolio companies have or may issue debt senior to MACC's investment. The payment of principal and interest due on MACC's investment, therefore, will generally be subordinate to payments due on any such senior debt. Moreover, senior debt typically bears interest at a floating rate, whereas MACC's investments generally do not. Any increase in market interest rates may put significant economic pressure on those Existing Portfolio companies that have issued senior debt which bears interest at a floating rate. Accordingly, MACC's ability to achieve net operating income and generally to realize gains from its Existing Portfolio investments may be adversely affected by an increase in market interest rates.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders MACC Private Equities Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of MACC Private Equities Inc. (the Company), including the schedule of investments (Schedule 1), as of September 30, 2010 and 2009, and the related statements of operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 30, 2010, and the financial highlights for each of the years in the five-year period ended September 30, 2010. These financial statements and financial highlights are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial highlights based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and financial highlights are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our procedures included confirmation and examination of securities owned as of September 30, 2010. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements and financial highlights referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of MACC Private Equities Inc. as of September 30, 2010 and 2009, and the results of its operations, the changes in its net assets, and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 30, 2010, and the financial highlights for each of the years in the five-year period ended September 30, 2010, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As explained in note 2 to the financial statements, the accompanying financial statements include investments whose fair values have been estimated by the Board of Directors and management in the absence of readily determinable fair values. Such estimates are based on financial and other information provided to management by its portfolio companies, credit market conditions, and risks and uncertainties associated with those conditions. Because such valuations, and particularly valuations of investments in private companies, are inherently uncertain, they may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time and could differ materially from the values that would have been utilized had a ready market for these investments existed.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in note 1 to the financial statements, the Company does not have sufficient cash on hand to meet current obligations. These conditions raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plans in regard to these matters are also described in note 1. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

/s/ KPMG

San Diego, CA

December 29, 2010

- 25 -

# MACC PRIVATE EQUITIES INC.

#### BALANCE SHEETS SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 AND 2009

SEP	TEM	BER	30,	2010	) ANL	2009

Assets		2010	2009
Loans and investments in portfolio securities, at fair value (note 2):			
Unaffiliated companies (cost of \$732,032 for 2010; \$779,807 for 2009)	\$	1,201,524	1,199,388
Affiliated companies (cost of \$6,072,436 for 2010; \$10,664,161 for 2009)		5,867,593	7,973,862
Controlled companies (cost of \$2,867,127 for 2010; \$2,874,939 for 2009)		2,157,533	2,602,022
Cash and money market accounts		135,094	173,521
Interest receivable		24,255	303,656
Other assets (note 1)		188,786	264,070
Total assets	\$	9,574,785	12,516,519
Liabilities and net assets			
Liabilities:			
Note payable (note 3)	\$	3,367,928	4,618,659
Incentive fees payable (note 5)	Ψ	16,361	16,361
Accounts payable and other liabilities		242,417	72,111
Accounts payable and other nationales		272,717	72,111
Total liabilities		3,626,706	4,707,131
		5,020,700	1,707,101
Net assets:			
Common stock, \$.01 par value per share; authorized 10,000,000 shares;			
issued and outstanding 2,464,621 shares for each 2009 and 2008		24,646	24,646
Additional paid-in-capital, net of accumulated investment expense and			
realized loss		6,368,378	10,328,377
Unrealized depreciation on investments (note 2)		(444,945)	(2,543,635)
Total net assets		5,948,079	7,809,388
Commitments and contingencies (note 6)			
Total liabilities and net assets	\$	9,574,785	12,516,519
Net assets per share	\$	2.41	3.17
- ter ussets Per share	Ψ	2111	2.11

### SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# MACC PRIVATE EQUITIES INC.

### STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010, 2009 AND 2008

Investment income:         Interest         8         67,328         129,334         33,315           Interest         203,492         236,787         516,387         Affiliated companies         (241,843)             Loss on interest receivable         338         318         2,917         Other           Dividends         Affiliated companies         (241,843)              Affiliated companies         (241,843)               Dividends         318         2,917         Other               Other              Other              Other             Other            Other		2010	2009	2008
Interest       \$ 67,328       129,334       33,315         Unaffiliated companies       203,492       236,787       516,387         Affiliated companies       181,265       24,957       47,933         Controlled companies       (241,843)           Loss on interest receivable       338       318       2,917         Other        7,653       6         Other       229,228       284,557       282,457         Professional fees       465,815       325,839       395,240         Other       23,621       229,862       253,482         Total operating expenses       1,284,167       1,224,552       1,403,354         Expenses reduced by Advisor       (114,614) <td< td=""><td>Investment income:</td><td>2010</td><td>2007</td><td>2000</td></td<>	Investment income:	2010	2007	2000
Unaffiliated companies       203,492       236,787       516,387         Affiliated companies       181,265       24,957       47,933         Controlled companies       (241,843)           Loss on interest receivable       338       318       2,917         Other         26,766          Dividends        26,766        6         Affiliated companies        26,766        6         Other        7,653       6          Other        7,653       6          Other        7,653       6          Other        7,653       6          Other        7,653       6          Interest expenses (note 3)       258,753       303,794       408,175         Management fees (note 5)       229,228       284,557       282,457         Professional fees       465,815       325,839       395,240         Director fees       66,750       80,500       64,000         Other       263,621       229,862       253,482		\$ 67,328	129,334	33,315
Affiliated companies       181,265       24,957       47,933         Controlled companies       (241,843)           Loss on interest receivable       338       318       2,917         Other        26,766          Dividends        26,766          Other        7,653       6         Total investment income       395,339       586,989       955,563         Operating expenses:        -       7,653       6         Total investment income       395,339       586,989       955,563         Operating expenses:        -       -       -         Interest expenses (note 3)       258,753       303,794       408,175         Management fees (note 5)       229,228       284,557       282,457         Professional fees       66,750       80,500       64,000         Other       263,621       229,862       253,482         Total operating expenses before waivers       1,284,167       1,224,552       1,403,354         Expenses reduced by Advisor       (114,614)       (60,753)          Total operating expense, net before tax expense       (774,214)       (576	Unaffiliated companies			
Controlled companies       (241,843)           Loss on interest receivable       338       318       2,917         Other        26,766          Dividends        26,766          Other        7,653       6         Total investment income       395,339       586,989       955,563         Operating expenses:        7,653       30,794       408,175         Interest expenses (note 3)       258,753       303,794       408,175         Management fees (note 5)       229,228       284,557       282,457         Professional fees       465,815       325,839       395,240         Director fees       66,750       80,500       64,000         Other       203,621       229,862       253,482         Total operating expenses before waivers       1,284,167       1,224,552       1,403,354         Expenses reduced by Advisor       (114,614)       (60,753)          Total operating expense, net before tax expense       (774,214)       (576,810)       (447,791)         Investment expense, net before tax expense (note 2):            Investment expense, net <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>				
Loss on interest receivable         338         318         2,917           Other         Affiliated companies         184,759         161,174         355,005           Controlled companies          26,766          0           Other          7,653         6          0           Total investment income         395,339         586,989         955,563         0           Operating expenses:          7,653         303,794         408,175           Management fees (note 3)         258,753         303,794         408,175           Management fees (note 5)         229,228         284,557         282,457           Professional fees         465,815         325,839         395,240           Other         263,621         229,862         253,482           Total operating expenses before waivers         1,284,167         1,224,552         1,403,354           Expenses reduced by Advisor         (114,614)         (60,753)            Total operating expense, net before tax expense         (774,214)         (576,810)         (447,791)           Income tax benefit (note 4)              Investment expense, net         (774				
Dividends       184,759       161,174       355,005         Affiliated companies        26,766          Other        7,653       6         Total investment income       395,339       586,989       955,563         Operating expenses:         7,653       6         Operating expenses:         258,753       303,794       408,175         Management fees (note 5)       229,228       284,557       282,457         Professional fees       465,815       325,839       395,240         Director fees       66,750       80,500       64,000         Other       263,621       229,862       253,482         Total operating expenses before waivers       1,284,167       1,224,552       1,403,354         Expenses reduced by Advisor       (114,614)       (60,753)          Total operating expenses       1,169,553       1,163,799       1,403,354         Investment expense, net before tax expense       (774,214)       (576,810)       (447,791)         Income tax benefit (note 4)             Investment expense, net       (774,214)       (576,810)       (447,791)	1		318	2,917
Affiliated companies       184,759       161,174       355,005         Controlled companies        26,766          Other        7,653       6         Total investment income       395,339       586,989       955,563         Operating expenses:         7,653       6         Interest expenses (note 3)       258,753       303,794       408,175         Management fees (note 5)       229,228       284,557       282,457         Professional fees       465,815       325,839       395,240         Director fees       66,750       80,500       64,000         Other             Total operating expenses before waivers       1,284,167       1,224,552       1,403,354         Expenses reduced by Advisor       (114,614)       (60,753)          Total operating expenses       1,169,553       1,163,799       1,403,354         Investment expense, net before tax expense       (774,214)       (576,810)       (447,791)         Income tax benefit (note 4)            Investment expense, net       (note 2):           Net realized (lo	Other			
Controlled companies        26,766          Other        7,653       6         Total investment income       395,339       586,989       955,563         Operating expenses:         7,653       6         Interest expenses (note 3)       258,753       303,794       408,175         Management fees (note 5)       229,228       284,557       282,457         Professional fees       465,815       325,839       395,240         Director fees       66,750       80,500       64,000         Other       263,621       229,862       253,482         Total operating expenses before waivers       1,284,167       1,224,552       1,403,354         Expenses reduced by Advisor       (114,614)       (60,753)          Total operating expenses       1,169,553       1,163,799       1,403,354         Investment expense, net before tax expense       (774,214)       (576,810)       (447,791)         Income tax benefit (note 4)            Investment expense, net       (774,214)       (576,810)       (447,791)         Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2):        (908,201)       (106,664)	Dividends			
Controlled companies        26,766          Other        7,653       6         Total investment income       395,339       586,989       955,563         Operating expenses:         7,653       6         Interest expenses (note 3)       258,753       303,794       408,175         Management fees (note 5)       229,228       284,557       282,457         Professional fees       465,815       325,839       395,240         Director fees       66,750       80,500       64,000         Other       263,621       229,862       253,482         Total operating expenses before waivers       1,284,167       1,224,552       1,403,354         Expenses reduced by Advisor       (114,614)       (60,753)          Total operating expenses       1,169,553       1,163,799       1,403,354         Investment expense, net before tax expense       (774,214)       (576,810)       (447,791)         Income tax benefit (note 4)            Investment expense, net       (774,214)       (576,810)       (447,791)         Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2):        (908,201)       (106,664)	Affiliated companies	184,759	161,174	355,005
Other $7,653$ 6         Total investment income $395,339$ $586,989$ $955,563$ Operating expenses:           Interest expenses (note 3) $258,753$ $303,794$ $408,175$ Management fees (note 5) $229,228$ $284,557$ $282,457$ Professional fees $465,815$ $325,839$ $395,240$ Director fees $66,750$ $80,500$ $64,000$ Other $263,621$ $229,2862$ $253,482$ Total operating expenses before waivers $1,284,167$ $1,224,552$ $1,403,354$ Expenses reduced by Advisor       (114,614)       (60,753)          Total operating expenses $1,169,553$ $1,163,799$ $1,403,354$ Investment expense, net before tax expense $(774,214)$ $(576,810)$ $(447,791)$ Income tax benefit (note 4)            Investment expense, net $(774,214)$ $(576,810)$ $(447,791)$ Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2):       Net realized (loss) gain on investments:          Unaffiliated companies        <			26,766	
Operating expenses:       Interset expenses (note 3) $258,753$ $303,794$ $408,175$ Management fees (note 5) $229,228$ $284,557$ $282,457$ Professional fees $465,815$ $325,839$ $395,240$ Director fees $66,750$ $80,500$ $64,000$ Other $263,621$ $229,862$ $253,482$ Total operating expenses before waivers $1,284,167$ $1,224,552$ $1,403,354$ Expenses reduced by Advisor       (114,614)       (60,753)          Total operating expenses $1,169,553$ $1,163,799$ $1,403,354$ Investment expense, net before tax expense       (774,214)       (576,810)       (447,791)         Income tax benefit (note 4)            Investment expense, net       (774,214)       (576,810)       (447,791)         Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2):            Net realized (loss) gain on investments:       (047,791)       (106,664)       4ffiliated companies        (908,201)       (106,664)         Affiliated companies       (3,185,785)       (1,535,929)       580,605       580,605       580,605	-		7,653	6
Operating expenses:       Interset expenses (note 3) $258,753$ $303,794$ $408,175$ Management fees (note 5) $229,228$ $284,557$ $282,457$ Professional fees $465,815$ $325,839$ $395,240$ Director fees $66,750$ $80,500$ $64,000$ Other $263,621$ $229,862$ $253,482$ Total operating expenses before waivers $1,284,167$ $1,224,552$ $1,403,354$ Expenses reduced by Advisor       (114,614)       (60,753)          Total operating expenses $1,169,553$ $1,163,799$ $1,403,354$ Investment expense, net before tax expense       (774,214)       (576,810)       (447,791)         Income tax benefit (note 4)            Investment expense, net       (774,214)       (576,810)       (447,791)         Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2):            Net trealized (loss) gain on investments:       (047,7214)       (576,810)       (106,664)         Affiliated companies        (908,201)       (106,664)          Net trealized (loss) gain on investments:       (3,185,785)				
Interest expenses (note 3) $258,753$ $303,794$ $408,175$ Management fees (note 5) $229,228$ $284,557$ $282,457$ Professional fees $465,815$ $325,839$ $395,240$ Director fees $66,750$ $80,500$ $64,000$ Other $263,621$ $229,862$ $253,482$ Total operating expenses before waivers $1,284,167$ $1,224,552$ $1,403,354$ Expenses reduced by Advisor $(114,614)$ $(60,753)$ Total operating expenses $1,169,553$ $1,163,799$ $1,403,354$ Investment expense, net before tax expense $(774,214)$ $(576,810)$ $(447,791)$ Income tax benefit (note 4)Investment expense, net $(774,214)$ $(576,810)$ $(447,791)$ Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2): $(908,201)$ $(106,664)$ Affiliated companies $(908,201)$ $(106,664)$ Affiliated companies $(3,185,785)$ $(1,535,929)$ $580,605$ Net urealized loss on other assets $(30, 678)$	Total investment income	395,339	586,989	955,563
Interest expenses (note 3) $258,753$ $303,794$ $408,175$ Management fees (note 5) $229,228$ $284,557$ $282,457$ Professional fees $465,815$ $325,839$ $395,240$ Director fees $66,750$ $80,500$ $64,000$ Other $263,621$ $229,862$ $253,482$ Total operating expenses before waivers $1,284,167$ $1,224,552$ $1,403,354$ Expenses reduced by Advisor $(114,614)$ $(60,753)$ Total operating expenses $1,169,553$ $1,163,799$ $1,403,354$ Investment expense, net before tax expense $(774,214)$ $(576,810)$ $(447,791)$ Income tax benefit (note 4)Investment expense, net $(774,214)$ $(576,810)$ $(447,791)$ Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2): $(908,201)$ $(106,664)$ Affiliated companies $(908,201)$ $(106,664)$ Affiliated companies $(3,185,785)$ $(1,535,929)$ $580,605$ Net urealized loss on other assets $(30, 678)$				
Management fees (note 5)229,228 $284,557$ $282,457$ Professional fees465,815 $325,839$ $395,240$ Director fees66,750 $80,500$ $64,000$ Other $263,621$ $229,862$ $253,482$ Total operating expenses before waivers $1,284,167$ $1,224,552$ $1,403,354$ Expenses reduced by Advisor(114,614)(60,753)Total operating expenses $1,169,553$ $1,163,799$ $1,403,354$ Investment expense, net before tax expense(774,214)(576,810)(447,791)Income tax benefit (note 4)Investment expense, net(774,214)(576,810)(447,791)Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2):(908,201)(106,664)Affiliated companies(908,201)(106,664)Affiliated companies(3,185,785)(1,535,929)580,605Net urealized loss on other assets(30, 678)	Operating expenses:			
Professional fees       465,815       325,839       395,240         Director fees       66,750       80,500       64,000         Other       263,621       229,862       253,482         Total operating expenses before waivers       1,284,167       1,224,552       1,403,354         Expenses reduced by Advisor       (114,614)       (60,753)          Total operating expenses       1,169,553       1,163,799       1,403,354         Investment expense, net before tax expense       (774,214)       (576,810)       (447,791)         Income tax benefit (note 4)            Investment expense, net       (774,214)       (576,810)       (447,791)         Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2):            Net realized (loss) gain on investments:        (908,201)       (106,664)         Affiliated companies       (3,185,785)       (1,535,929)       580,605         Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments       2,098,690       395,347       (1,294,629)         Realized loss on other assets        (30, 678)	Interest expenses (note 3)	258,753	303,794	408,175
Director fees       66,750       80,500       64,000         Other       263,621       229,862       253,482         Total operating expenses before waivers       1,284,167       1,224,552       1,403,354         Expenses reduced by Advisor       (114,614)       (60,753)          Total operating expenses       1,169,553       1,163,799       1,403,354         Investment expense, net before tax expense       (774,214)       (576,810)       (447,791)         Income tax benefit (note 4)            Investment expense, net       (774,214)       (576,810)       (447,791)         Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2):            Net realized (loss) gain on investments:        (908,201)       (106,664)         Affiliated companies       (3,185,785)       (1,535,929)       580,605         Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments       2,098,690       395,347       (1,294,629)         Realized loss on other assets        (30, 678)	Management fees (note 5)	229,228	284,557	282,457
Other $263,621$ $229,862$ $253,482$ Total operating expenses before waivers $1,284,167$ $1,224,552$ $1,403,354$ Expenses reduced by Advisor $(114,614)$ $(60,753)$ Total operating expenses $1,169,553$ $1,163,799$ $1,403,354$ Investment expense, net before tax expense $(774,214)$ $(576,810)$ $(447,791)$ Income tax benefit (note 4)            Investment expense, net $(774,214)$ $(576,810)$ $(447,791)$ Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2):        (576,810) $(447,791)$ Realized (loss) gain on investments:        (908,201) $(106,664)$ Affiliated companies        (908,201) $(106,664)$ Affiliated companies       (3,185,785) $(1,535,929)$ 580,605         Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments       2,098,690       395,347 $(1,294,629)$ Realized loss on other assets        (30, 678) $(30, 678)$	Professional fees	465,815	325,839	395,240
Total operating expenses before waivers $1,284,167$ $1,224,552$ $1,403,354$ Expenses reduced by Advisor $(114,614)$ $(60,753)$ Total operating expenses $1,169,553$ $1,163,799$ $1,403,354$ Investment expense, net before tax expense $(774,214)$ $(576,810)$ $(447,791)$ Income tax benefit (note 4)Investment expense, net $(774,214)$ $(576,810)$ $(447,791)$ Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2):Net realized (loss) gain on investments:(908,201) $(106,664)$ Affiliated companies $(3,185,785)$ $(1,535,929)$ 580,605Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments2,098,690395,347 $(1,294,629)$ Realized loss on other assets(30, 678)	Director fees	66,750	80,500	64,000
Expenses reduced by Advisor $(114,614)$ $(60,753)$ Total operating expenses $1,169,553$ $1,163,799$ $1,403,354$ Investment expense, net before tax expense $(774,214)$ $(576,810)$ $(447,791)$ Income tax benefit (note 4)Investment expense, net $(774,214)$ $(576,810)$ $(447,791)$ Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2):(908,201) $(106,664)$ Affiliated companies(908,201) $(106,664)$ Affiliated companies(3,185,785) $(1,535,929)$ 580,605Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments2,098,690395,347 $(1,294,629)$ Realized loss on other assets $(30, 678)$ $(30, 678)$	Other	263,621	229,862	253,482
Expenses reduced by Advisor $(114,614)$ $(60,753)$ Total operating expenses $1,169,553$ $1,163,799$ $1,403,354$ Investment expense, net before tax expense $(774,214)$ $(576,810)$ $(447,791)$ Income tax benefit (note 4)Investment expense, net $(774,214)$ $(576,810)$ $(447,791)$ Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2):(908,201) $(106,664)$ Affiliated companies(908,201) $(106,664)$ Affiliated companies(3,185,785) $(1,535,929)$ 580,605Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments2,098,690395,347 $(1,294,629)$ Realized loss on other assets $(30, 678)$				
Total operating expenses $1,169,553$ $1,163,799$ $1,403,354$ Investment expense, net before tax expense $(774,214)$ $(576,810)$ $(447,791)$ Income tax benefit (note 4)Investment expense, net $(774,214)$ $(576,810)$ $(447,791)$ Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2):Net realized (loss) gain on investments: $(908,201)$ $(106,664)$ Affiliated companies $(908,201)$ $(106,664)$ Affiliated companies(3,185,785) $(1,535,929)$ $580,605$ Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments $2,098,690$ $395,347$ $(1,294,629)$ Realized loss on other assets $(30, 678)$ $(30, 678)$	Total operating expenses before waivers	1,284,167	1,224,552	1,403,354
Total operating expenses $1,169,553$ $1,163,799$ $1,403,354$ Investment expense, net before tax expense $(774,214)$ $(576,810)$ $(447,791)$ Income tax benefit (note 4)Investment expense, net $(774,214)$ $(576,810)$ $(447,791)$ Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2):Net realized (loss) gain on investments: $(908,201)$ $(106,664)$ Affiliated companies $(908,201)$ $(106,664)$ Affiliated companies(3,185,785) $(1,535,929)$ $580,605$ Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments $2,098,690$ $395,347$ $(1,294,629)$ Realized loss on other assets $(30, 678)$ $(30, 678)$				
Investment expense, net before tax expense(774,214)(576,810)(447,791)Income tax benefit (note 4)Investment expense, net(774,214)(576,810)(447,791)Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2): Net realized (loss) gain on investments: Unaffiliated companies(908,201)(106,664)Affiliated companies(908,201)(106,664)(3,185,785)(1,535,929)580,605Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments2,098,690395,347(1,294,629)Realized loss on other assets(30, 678)	Expenses reduced by Advisor	(114,614)	(60,753)	
Investment expense, net before tax expense(774,214)(576,810)(447,791)Income tax benefit (note 4)Investment expense, net(774,214)(576,810)(447,791)Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2): Net realized (loss) gain on investments: Unaffiliated companies(908,201)(106,664)Affiliated companies(908,201)(106,664)(3,185,785)(1,535,929)580,605Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments2,098,690395,347(1,294,629)Realized loss on other assets(30, 678)				
Income tax benefit (note 4)Investment expense, net(774,214)(576,810)(447,791)Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2): Net realized (loss) gain on investments: Unaffiliated companies(908,201)(106,664)Affiliated companies(908,201)(106,664)(1,294,629)(1,294,629)Net unrealized loss on other assets(30, 678)	Total operating expenses	1,169,553	1,163,799	1,403,354
Income tax benefit (note 4)Investment expense, net(774,214)(576,810)(447,791)Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2): Net realized (loss) gain on investments: Unaffiliated companies(908,201)(106,664)Affiliated companies(908,201)(106,664)(1,294,629)(1,294,629)Net unrealized loss on other assets(30, 678)				
Investment expense, net(774,214)(576,810)(447,791)Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2):Net realized (loss) gain on investments:Unaffiliated companies(908,201)(106,664)Affiliated companies(3,185,785)(1,535,929)580,605Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments2,098,690395,347(1,294,629)Realized loss on other assets(30, 678)	Investment expense, net before tax expense	(774,214)	(576,810)	(447,791)
Investment expense, net(774,214)(576,810)(447,791)Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2):Net realized (loss) gain on investments:Unaffiliated companies(908,201)(106,664)Affiliated companies(3,185,785)(1,535,929)580,605Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments2,098,690395,347(1,294,629)Realized loss on other assets(30, 678)				
Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2):Net realized (loss) gain on investments:Unaffiliated companies(908,201)(106,664)Affiliated companies(3,185,785)(1,535,929)580,605Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments2,098,690395,347(1,294,629)Realized loss on other assets(30, 678)	Income tax benefit (note 4)			
Realized and unrealized loss on investments (note 2):Net realized (loss) gain on investments:Unaffiliated companies(908,201)(106,664)Affiliated companies(3,185,785)(1,535,929)580,605Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments2,098,690395,347(1,294,629)Realized loss on other assets(30, 678)				
Net realized (loss) gain on investments:        (908,201)       (106,664)         Unaffiliated companies       (3,185,785)       (1,535,929)       580,605         Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments       2,098,690       395,347       (1,294,629)         Realized loss on other assets        (30, 678)	Investment expense, net	(774,214)	(576,81	10) (447,791)
Net realized (loss) gain on investments:        (908,201)       (106,664)         Unaffiliated companies       (3,185,785)       (1,535,929)       580,605         Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments       2,098,690       395,347       (1,294,629)         Realized loss on other assets        (30, 678)				
Unaffiliated companies        (908,201)       (106,664)         Affiliated companies       (3,185,785)       (1,535,929)       580,605         Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments       2,098,690       395,347       (1,294,629)         Realized loss on other assets        (30, 678)				
Affiliated companies(3,185,785)(1,535,929)580,605Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments2,098,690395,347(1,294,629)Realized loss on other assets(30, 678)				
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments2,098,690395,347(1,294,629)Realized loss on other assets(30, 678)	•			
Realized loss on other assets (30, 678)	*			
		2,098,690	395,347	
Net loss on investments(1,087,095)(2,048,783)(638,038)				
	Net loss on investments	(1,087,095	) (2,048,7	(638,038)

Net change	in net	assets	from	operations
------------	--------	--------	------	------------

)

#### SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- 27 -

### MACC PRIVATE EQUITIES INC.

#### STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010, 2009 AND 2008

2010	2009	2008
\$ (774,214	)(576,810	)(447,791)
(3,185,78	85)(2,444,130	) 687,269
2,098,69	90 395,347	(1,294,629)
-		(30,678)
(1,861,309	) (2,625,593	) (1,085,829 )
7,809,38	38 10,434,98	81 11,520,810
\$ 5,948,079	7,809,3	88 10,434,981
	\$ (774,214 (3,185,78 2,098,69 (1,861,309 7,809,38	\$ (774,214 )(576,810 (3,185,785)(2,444,130 2,098,690 395,347  (1,861,309 )(2,625,593 7,809,388 10,434,9

# SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- 28 -

# MACC PRIVATE EQUITIES INC.

#### STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010, 2009 AND 2008

	2010	2009	2008
Cash flows from operating activities:			
Decrease in net assets from operations	\$ (1,861,309)	(2,625,593)	(1,085,829)
Adjustments to reconcile decrease in net			
assets from operations to			
net cash provided by operating activities:			
Net realized and unrealized loss (gain) on	1 0 5 7 5 5 1	0.040.500	
investments	1,057,551	2,048,783	607,360
Net realized and unrealized gain on other assets			30,678
Proceeds from disposition of and payments			
on			
loans and investments in portfolio			
securities	1,563,413	817,382	1,647,743
Purchases of loans and investments in			
portfolio securities	(72,342)	(139,586)	(52,000)
Change in interest receivable	279,401	9,905	(44,963)
Change in other assets	75,284	88,605	(170,413)
Change in accrued interest, deferred			
incentive fees payable,	170.207	(40.010 )	(051 112 )
accounts payable and other liabilities	170,306	(40,019)	(251,113)
Total adjustments	3,073,613	2,785,070	1,767,292
	1 010 004	150 477	601.462
Net cash provided by operating activities	1,212,304	159,477	681,463
Cash flows from financing activities:			
Line of credit draws		522,160	
Note repayment	(1,250,731)	(653,906)	(1,357,968)
	(1.050.721.)	(121.746)	(1, 257, 0.00)
Net cash used in financing activities	(1,250,731)	(131,746 )	(1,357,968)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash			
equivalents	(38,427)	27,731	(676,505)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of			
period	173,521	145,790	822,295
F 0	1,0,0=1	1.0,170	022,270
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$ 135,094	173,521	145,790
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information -			
Cash paid during the period for interest	\$ 256,503	288,632	391,907

29,544	 
540,580	 

### SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### MACC PRIVATE EQUITIES INC. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES AND RELATED MATTERS

(a)

**Basis of Presentation** 

The financial statements include the accounts of MACC Private Equities Inc. ("MACC"). MACC has elected to be treated as a business development company under the Investment Company Act of 1940. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") for investment companies.

Effective April 30, 2008, MACC's wholly owned subsidiary, MorAmerica Capital Corporation ("MorAm"), was merged into MACC.

(b) Going Concern Uncertainty and Liquidity

MACC has a negative net change in net assets from operations of \$1,861,309 for the year ended September 30, 2010. Operating expenses have been funded primarily from the sale of portfolio companies, dividends, interest and other distributions from MACC's portfolio companies and from MACC's bank financing.

MACC continues to have an ongoing need to raise cash from portfolio sales to fund operations and pay down outstanding debt. MACC's effort to sell certain investments has taken longer than initially anticipated while performance of the underlying portfolio companies in certain cases has deteriorated. MACC's ability to liquidate positions continued to be adversely affected by current credit conditions and the downturn in the financial markets and the global economy throughout the current fiscal year. In addition, MACC's note payable with Cedar Rapids Bank & Trust Company (the "Bank") in the amount of \$3,367,928 is due and payable on January 10, 2011. On December 13, 2010, the Company paid \$693,263 to the Bank in the form of a principal payment on the outstanding note payable with the Bank. The payment was made from proceeds of a portfolio company exit transaction and in accordance with the terms outlined in the note payable. Subsequent to the payment, the balance of the note payable on December 13, 2010 was \$2,663,029.

MACC will need to either extend the due date on the current note payable or consider additional sources of financing and additional sales of investments in order to meet current payment and operating requirements. No assurance can be given that MACC will be successful in its efforts to extend its current financing arrangement or raise additional funding in the near term and accordingly these facts raise substantial doubt about MACC's ability to continue as a going concern. The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that MACC will continue as a going concern.

At MACC's annual shareholder meeting held on November 30, 2010, shareholders voted against giving MACC the ability to raise additional capital through the issuance of shares of common stock at a price below MACC's then-current net asset value per share. In addition shareholders voted against allowing MACC the ability to issue warrants, options or rights to subscribe for or convert into common stock. Without these authorizations to sell shares at below net asset value or issues options or warrants, MACC's ability to raise funding through the capital markets is highly unlikely.

As a result of the shareholder actions, the Board of Directions will review a number of alternatives and evaluate potential exit opportunities to maximize return on investment, including seeking shareholder approval to liquidate. At

the same time, we will continue to seek additional cash through future sales of portfolio equity and debt securities and from other financing arrangements. Absent financing amendments to the current note payable or additional sources of financing, current working capital and cash will not be adequate for operations at their current levels. If such efforts are not successful, MACC may need to liquidate its current investment portfolio, to the extent possible, which could result in significant realized losses due to the current economic conditions.

- 30 -

(c)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP and pursuant to the requirements for reporting on Form 10-K and Article 6 of the Regulation S-X. In accordance with Article 6-09 of Regulation S-X under the Exchange Act, we are providing a Statement of Changes in Net Assets in lieu of a Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity.

(d) Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, MACC considers certificates of deposit and U. S. treasury bills with maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase and money market accounts to be cash equivalents. At September 30, 2010, and 2009, cash equivalents consisted of \$133,059 of money market funds and \$171,831, respectively.

(e) Loans and Investments in Portfolio Securities

Investments in securities that are restricted and other securities for which quotations are not readily available are valued at fair value as determined by the Board of Directors. Among the factors considered by MACC in determining the fair value of investments were the cost of the investment; developments, including recent financing transactions, since the acquisition of the investment; the financial condition and operating results of the portfolio company, comparisons of multiples of peer companies that are public, the long-term potential of the business of the portfolio company; market interest rates for similar debt securities; overall market conditions and other factors generally pertinent to the valuation of investments. When an external event such as a purchase transaction, public offering or subsequent equity sale occurs in connection with one of our portfolio companies, our board of directors uses the pricing indicated by the external event to corroborate and/or assist us in our valuation of our investment in such portfolio company. However, because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, those estimated values may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a ready market for the securities existed, and the differences could be material.

In the valuation process, MACC uses financial information received quarterly and annually from the portfolio companies (generally one to three months arrears) which includes both audited and unaudited financial statements. This information is used to assist in assessing financial condition, performance, and valuation of the portfolio investments.

Realization of the carrying value of investments is subject to future developments (see note 2). Investment transactions are recorded on the trade date. Identified cost is used to determine realized gains and losses. Under fresh start reporting, the fair value of loans and investments in portfolio securities on February 15, 1995, is considered the cost basis for financial statement purposes.

(f)

Other Assets, Net

For the year ended September 30, 2010, other assets include prepaid taxes and insurance of \$41,973, \$131,000 held in escrow and other receivables of \$15,813.

For the year ended September 30, 2009, other assets include deferred fees on the note payable of \$1,250, which are amortized over the life of the loan, prepaid taxes and insurance of \$40,605, fees associated with the Rights Offering of \$41,609, \$131,000 held in escrow and other receivables of \$49,606.

(g)

**Revenue Recognition** 

Dividend income is recognized on the ex-dividend date and interest income is accrued on a daily basis.

Debt securities may be placed on non-accrual status and related interest income may be reduced by ceasing current accruals and writing off interest receivables when the collection of all or a portion of interest has become

- 31 -

doubtful based on consistently applied procedures. A debt security is removed from non-accrual status when the issuer resumes interest payments and when collectability of interest is reasonably assured.

In conjunction with the investment process, MACC negotiates non-refundable processing fees with many companies it evaluates for investment. These fees are compensation for time and efforts of the investment advisory personnel and for reimbursement of expenses related to the due diligence, and are recognized as income when received.

In-kind interest income or realized gain/loss may be recorded in connection with debt to equity conversions or in the case of certain debt security restructurings, depending on the terms of the arrangements. In the current year, realized gain was recognized in connection with restructuring of our debt investments in Detroit Tool Metal Products Co. Due to the subsequent reduction in fair value post restructuring, unrealized loss was recognized on the security received in the restructuring resulting in no net change in net assets for the year ended September 30, 2010.

(h)

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the consolidated financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis and net operating and capital loss carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in the period that includes the enactment date.

Uncertain tax positions are recognized only if they meet a "more likely than not threshold." The Company has not identified any tax positions that do not meet this recognition threshold.

(i)

Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Disclosures are required to be made regarding the estimated fair value of financial instruments, which are generally described as cash, contractual obligations, or rights to pay or receive cash. The carrying amount approximates fair value for certain financial instruments because of the short-term maturity of these instruments, including cash and money market, deferred incentive fees payable, accrued interest, accounts payable and other liabilities.

Portfolio investments are recorded at fair value. The consolidated schedule of investments (schedule 1) discloses the applicable fair value and cost for each security investment, which aggregated to \$9,226,650 and \$11,775,272 at September 30, 2010 and September 30, 2009, respectively.

(j) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued authoritative guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures related to assets and liabilities measured at fair value. In February 2008, the FASB issued additional authoritative guidance for fair value measurements which delayed the effective date of the authoritative guidance for fair value measurements to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a nonrecurring basis. We adopted the provisions of the authoritative guidance for fair value measurements on January 1, 2008 with the exception of the application of the guidance to non-recurring nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities which we adopted on October 1, 2009. Our disclosures on the use of fair value measurements for our nonfinancial assets and liabilities are included in Note 2, "Fair Value Measurements".

In February 2007, standards were adopted that permit entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The provisions of this standard was effective as of the beginning of our 2009 fiscal year. This pronouncement had no impact on MACC's financial statements.

- 32 -

In October 2008, the FASB issued authoritative guidance which clarifies the application of determining fair value of financial assets when the market for that asset is not active. More specifically, the pronouncement states that significant judgment should be applied to determine if observable data in a dislocated market represents forced liquidations or distressed sales and are not representative of fair value in an orderly transaction. The pronouncement also provides further guidance that the use of a reporting entity's own assumptions about the future cash flows and appropriately risk-adjusted discount rates is acceptable when relevant observable inputs are not available. In addition, the pronouncement provides guidance on the level of reliance of broker quotes or pricing services when measuring fair value in a non-active market stating that less reliance should be placed on a quote that does not reflect actual market transactions and a quote that is not a binding offer. The guidance was effective upon issuance for all financial statements that had not been issued and any changes in valuation techniques as a result of applying this pronouncement were accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. MACC adopted this pronouncement during the quarter ended December 31, 2008. The adoption of this pronouncement had no impact on the financial statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures. This guidance provides companies with guidelines on how to determine fair value measurements when the volume and level of activity for an asset or liability have significantly decreased and how to identify transactions that are not orderly. This guidance was effective for interim reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009, with early adoption permitted for periods ending after March 15, 2009. We adopted this guidance for the quarter ended June 30, 2009, which did not have any impact on our financial statements.

In May 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidance for subsequent events which provides rules on recognition and disclosure for events and transactions occurring after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements are issued or available to be issued. In addition, the guidance requires a reporting entity to disclose the date through which subsequent events have been evaluated, as well as whether that date is the date the financial statements are issued or the date the financial statements are available to be issued. This guidance was effective for interim and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009. We adopted this guidance for the quarter ended June 30, 2009 and have included the required additional disclosures in Note 7, "Subsequent Events."

In June 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidance on the Accounting Standards Codification ("Codification") and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("U.S. GAAP"), which establishes the Codification as the single source for nongovernmental financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP, except for SEC rules and interpretive releases, which is also authoritative guidance for SEC registrants. This guidance was effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009 and superseded all then existing non-SEC accounting and reporting standards. The guidance is not intended to change or alter existing U.S. GAAP and will only impact references to accounting guidance. Accordingly, we removed references to legacy U.S. GAAP in our publicly issued consolidated financial statements, starting with the accompanying financial statements and disclosures for the period ended September 30, 2009.

(2)

#### Investments

Investments measured and reported at fair value are classified and disclosed in one of the following categories:

Level I – Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date. The type of investments included in Level 1 include listed equities and listed derivatives.

Level II – Pricing inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or are otherwise observable, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instruments. Level 2 inputs also include prices for the identical asset or liability in those markets for which there are

few transactions, the prices are not current, little public information exists or instances where prices vary substantially over time or among brokered market makers.

Investments which are generally included in this category include corporate debt and less liquid and restricted equity securities

Level III – Pricing inputs are unobservable for the investments and includes situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the investment. The inputs into the determination of fair value require significant

- 33 -

management judgment or estimation and are based on the Board of Director's own assumptions about the assumptions that a market participant would use, including inputs derived from extrapolation and interpolation that are not corroborated by observable market data. Investments that are included in this category generally include corporate private equity.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, the determination of which category within the fair value hierarchy is appropriate for any given investment is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. MACC's assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to the investment.

All of MACC's investments at September 30, 2010 and September 30, 2009 were classified and disclosed under the Level III category. Investments are stated at fair value as determined by the Board of Directors according to the procedures of MACC's Valuation Policy. Securities are valued individually and in the aggregate as of the end of each quarter of each fiscal year and as of the end of each fiscal year. Loan and debt security valuation determinations take into account portfolio companies' financial condition, outlook, payment histories and other factors and are generally valued in an amount not greater than cost in consideration of a market participant's view of exit price. Similarly, equity security valuations take into account the following factors, among others: the portfolio company's performance, the prospects of a portfolio company's future equity financing and the character of participants in such financing, and the utilization of various financial measures, including cash flow multiples, as appropriate. If a portfolio company appears likely to discontinue operations, a liquidation valuation technique may be employed. The Board of Directors also considers credit market conditions, and the risks and uncertainties associated with those conditions in determining the values of its portfolio securities. Valuations established by the Board of Directors are not necessarily indicative of amounts which may ultimately be realized as a result of future sales or other dispositions of portfolio assets, and these favorable or unfavorable differences could be material.

Loans and investments in portfolio securities include debt and equity securities in small business concerns located throughout the continental United States, with a concentration in the Midwest. MACC determined that the fair value of its portfolio securities was \$9,226,650 at September 30, 2010.

The following table presents the investments at fair value as of September 30, 2010 by type of investment:

Fair Value Based on	Corporate Private Debt	Corporate Private Equity	Total
Investment Level III	\$ 6,092,445	\$3,134,205(1)	100%

(1) represents \$557,848 in preferred shares; \$1,698,638 in common shares; \$802,215 in membership interests, and \$75,504 in escrow.

The following table presents the investments at fair value as of September 30, 2009 by type of investment:

Fair Value Based on	Corporate Private Debt	Corporate Private Equity	Total
Investment Level III	\$ 7,111,912	\$4,663,630(1)	100%

(1) represents \$3,074,045 in preferred shares; \$817,925 in common shares; and \$771,390 in membership interests.

The following table provides a rollforward in the changes in fair value during year ending September 30, 2010 for all investments which MACC has determined using unobservable (Level III) factors.

For the year ended September 30, 2010		Total
Balance, October 1, 2009		\$11,775,272
Purchases (Debt Repayment)		
Detroit Tool Metal Products Co.	\$33,342	
Feed Management Systems, Inc.	(1,288,285)	
M.A. Gedney Company	(1,200,200)	
Magnum Systems, Inc.	(143,541)	
Morgan Ohare, Inc.	(7,812)	
Portrait Displays, Inc.	(47,775)	
SMWC Acquisition Co., Inc	29,544	
Superior Holding, Inc.	39,000	
TotaTotal Purchases (Debt Repayment)		(1,461,527)
RealRealized Gain (Loss)		(-,,)
Detroit Tool Metal Products Co.	540,579	
Feed Management Systems, Inc.	(562,203)	
Handy Industries, LLC	(269,093)	
M.A. Gedney Company	(1,450,601)	
Pratt-Read Corporation	(1,444,467)	
TotaTotal Realized Gain (Loss)		(3,185,785)
Un rUnrealized Gain (Loss)		
Aviation Manufacturing Group, LLC	31,176	
Detroit Metal Product Co.	(540,579)	
Feed Management Systems, Inc.	(115,144)	
Handy Industries, LLC	202,051	
Linton Truss Corporation	(65,700)	
M.A. Gedney Company	1,526,600	
Magnum Systems, Inc.	637,680	
Monitronics International, Inc.	243,070	
Morgan Ohare, Inc.	(3,864)	
Portrait Displays, Inc.	(127,459)	
Pratt-Read Corporation	1,444,466	
SMWC Acquisition Co., Inc.	(200,794)	
Spectrum Products, LLC	(432,813)	
Superior Holding, Inc.	(500,000)	
TotaTotal Unrealized Gain (Loss)		2,098,690
BalaBalance, September 30, 2010		\$9,226,650
The The amount of total gains (losses) for the period		\$2,098,690
included on the statement of operations attributable to		
changes in unrealized gains/losses relating to		

investments still held at the reporting date.

As discussed in Note 1 above, realized gain was recognized in connection with the restructuring of the Company's investment in Detroit Tool Metal Products Co. Due to the subsequent reduction in fair value post restructuring, unrealized loss was also recognized on the security received in the restructuring resulting in no net change in net assets for the year ended September 30, 2010.

The following table provides a rollforward in the changes in fair value during year ending September 30, 2009 for all investments which MACC has determined using unobservable (Level III) factors.

For the year ended September 30, 2009		Total
Balance, October 1, 2008		\$14,501,851
Purchases (Debt Repayment)		
Central Fiber Corporation	(\$258,222)	
Handy Industries, LLC	100,565	
Linton Truss Corporation	21	
MainStream Data, Inc.	(100,057)	
Morgan Ohare, Inc.	(57,292)	
Portrait Displays, Inc.	(81,575)	
SMWC Acquisition Co., Inc	(73,425)	
Superior Holding, Inc.	39,000	
Warren Family Funeral Homes, Inc.		
TotaTotal Purchases (Debt Repayment)	(12)	(420.007)
		(430,997)
RealRealized Gain (Loss)	(667 207)	
Handy Industries, LLC	(667,327)	
Kwik-Way Products, Inc.	(768,610)	
MainStream Data, Inc.	(99,992)	
Phonex Broadband Corporation	(1,155,000)	(2, (0,0, 0,2,0))
TotaTotal Realized Gain (Loss)		(2,690,929)
Un rUnrealized Gain (Loss)		
Aviation Manufacturing Group, LLC	(24,520)	
Detroit Tool Metal Products Co.	(321,973)	
Feed Management Systems, Inc.	39,641	
Handy Industries, LLC	215,877	
Kwik-Way Products, Inc.	768,610	
Linton Truss Corporation	(115,000)	
M.A. Gedney Company	(145,999)	
Magnum Systems, Inc.	(250,000)	
MainStream Data, Inc.	(24,951)	
Morgan Ohare, Inc.	(216,667)	
Phonex Broadband Corporation	1,154,999	
Portrait Displays, Inc.	324,050	
Pratt-Read Corporation	(905,576)	
Spectrum Products, LLC	432,706	
Superior Holding, Inc.	(335,850)	
Warren Family Funeral Homes, Inc.	(200,000)	
TotaTotal Unrealized Gain (Loss)	× · /	395,347
BalaBalance, September 30, 2009		\$11,775,272
The The amount of total gains (losses) for the period		\$395,347
included on the statement of operations attributable to		,-
changes in unrealized gains/losses relating to		
investments still held at the reporting date.		
in contents our note at the reporting date.		

Total unrealized gains and losses recorded for Level III investments are reported in Net Change in Unrealized Loss in the Statements of Operations.

- 36 -

### INVESTMENT CONCENTRATIONS

At September 30, 2010, the Company has aggregate investments in 11 Portfolio Companies and approximately 66% of the aggregate fair value of such investments was senior subordinated debt and 34% was in equity instruments. The following table outlines the Company's investment by type at September 30, 2010 and 2009.

	September 30, 20	010	September 30, 2	2009
	Cost	Fair Value	Cost	Fair Value
Senior Subordinated Debt	7,748,643	6,092,445	7,949,900	7,111,912
Preferred Equity Securities	1,416,892	557,848	4,686,768	3,074,045
Common Equity Securities	354,663	1,698,638	1,681,849	817,925
Membership Interests	390	802,215	390	771,390
Escrows	151,007	75,504		

MACC acquired its portfolio securities by direct purchase from the issuers under investment representation and values the securities on the premise that, in most instances, they may not be sold without registration under the Securities Act of 1933. The price of securities purchased was determined by direct negotiation between MACC and the seller. All portfolio securities are considered to be restricted in their disposition and illiquid at September 30, 2010 and 2009.

#### (3)

#### NOTES PAYABLE

MACC has a term loan in the amount of \$3,367,928 with the Bank as of September 30, 2010. This note is a variable interest rate note secured by a Security Agreement, Commercial Pledge Agreement and a Master Business Loan Agreement. The interest rate fluctuates daily and is the greater of the Wall Street Journal prime rate plus 0.5% or 6.0%. The interest rate on the note at September 30, 2010 was 6.0%. The note has a stated maturity of January 10, 2011. On December 13, 2010, the Company paid \$693,263 to the Bank in the form of a principal payment on the outstanding note payable with the Bank. The payment was made from proceeds of a portfolio company exit transaction and in accordance with the terms outlined in the note payable. Subsequent to the payment, the balance of the note payable on December 13, 2010 was \$2,663,029.

During the year ended September 30, 2009, MACC had a term loan in the amount of \$4,618,659 with Cedar Rapids Bank & Trust Company. The note was a variable interest rate note secured by a Security Agreement, Commercial Pledge Agreement and a Master Business Loan Agreement. The interest rate on the note at September 30, 2009 was 6.0%. The note had a stated maturity of March 31, 2010.

#### (4)

#### INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense differed from the amounts computed by applying the United States federal income tax rate of 34% to pretax loss due to the following (rounded to thousands):

	2010	2009	2008
Computed "expected" tax expense	\$ (	(914,000)	(369,000)
	619,000)		
Increase (reduction) in income taxes resulting from:			
Nontaxable dividend income	(31,000)	(26,000)	(59,000)
Reduction of Federal Net Operating Losses	1,136,000		1,824,000
Change in the beginning of the period valuation	on (504,000)	940,000	(1,396,000)
allowance for deferred tax assets			

Other	18,000	 
Income tax expense / (benefit)	\$ 	 

- 37 -

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets at September 30, 2010 and 2009 are as follows (rounded to thousands):

		2010	2009
Deferred tax assets:			
	Net operating and capital loss carryforwards	\$ 8,174,000	7,953,000
	Unrealized depreciation on investments	590,000	1,460,000
	Interest Reserve and other	513,000	586,000
	Total gross deferred tax assets	9,277,000	9,999,000
Less valuation allowance		(8,947,000)	(9,451,000)
Net deferred tax assets		330,000	548,000
Deferred tax liabilities:			

Equity pass-through investments	(275,000)	(427,000)
Other assets received in lieu of cash	(55,000)	(121,000)
Net deferred tax assets	\$ 	

The net change in the total valuation allowance for the year ended September 30, 2010 was a decrease of \$504,000 as compared with an increase of \$1,069,000 at the year ended September 30, 2009. In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. Management considers projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. In order to fully realize the gross deferred tax assets, MACC will need to generate future taxable income of approximately \$21 million prior to the expiration of the loss carryforwards in 2014-2030.

At September 30, 2010, MACC has net operating and capital loss carryforwards for federal income tax purposes of approximately \$21 million, which are available to offset future federal taxable income, if any, through 2030. At September 30, 2009, MACC had approximately \$20 million in net operating and capital loss carryforwards.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and approximately three state jurisdictions. Tax years ending September 30 of 2009, 2008, and 2007 are currently open for examination by federal and state tax authorities.

The Company has no unrecognized tax benefits as of September 30, 2010. The Company does not believe that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase within the next 12 months.

(5)

### MANAGEMENT AGREEMENTS

(a)

Eudaimonia

MACC entered into an investment advisory agreement (the "Agreement") with Eudaimonia Asset Management, LLC ("EAM") on April 29, 2008. The management fee is equal to an annual rate of 2.0% of Assets Under Management (as defined in the Agreement), payable in arrears. In April, 2009, EAM elected to voluntarily reduce their fee to 1.5% and additionally in May, 2009, to reduce their fee to 1.0% for an indefinite period. The remaining 1.0% of the

management fee continues to be paid and allocated to the subadvisor. In addition to the management fee, MACC contracted to pay an incentive fee of 13.4% of Net Capital Gains on Existing Portfolio Companies (as defined in the Agreement) and an incentive fee of 20.0% of Net Capital Gains on New Portfolio Companies (as defined in the Agreement), before taxes. The Agreement may be terminated by either party upon sixty days' written notice. Total management fees under the Agreement amounted to \$0 for the year ended

September 30, 2010 and \$81,525 for the year ended September 30, 2009. There were \$0 incentive fees paid under the Agreement in 2010 and 2009.

(b)

#### InvestAmerica

MACC and EAM entered into an investment sub-advisory agreement (the "Subadvisory Agreement") with InvestAmerica on April 29, 2008. The management fee (as defined in the Subadvisory Agreement) is equal to 50% of the management fee actually paid by MACC to EAM attributable to Existing Portfolio Companies, payable in arrears. EAM elected to reduce their fees, however InvestAmerica continues to receive a management fee equal to 50% of the original agreement or an annual rate of 1% of Assets under Management attributable to Existing Portfolio Companies. The Subadvisory Agreement may be terminated by any party upon sixty days' written notice. Total management fees paid to InvestAmerica amounted to \$114,614 for the year ended September 30, 2010 and \$142,279 for the year ended September 30, 2009. There were \$0 incentive fees paid under the Subadvisory Agreement in 2010 and 2009.

#### (6) Commitments and Contingencies

As of September 30, 2010, the Company was not party to any signed and non-binding term sheets for potential investments.

#### Subsequent events

(7)

The Company evaluated all events that have occurred subsequent to September 30, 2010 through the date of the filing of this Annual Report. MACC held its annual meeting of shareholders on November 30, 2010 (the "Annual Meeting"). Among other things, at the Annual Meeting the shareholders re-elected the current members of the Board; however the shareholders did not approve:

Authorization for a reverse stock split of the Company's common stock;

To change the Company's name to "MACC Equities, Inc.";

Authorization to sell or otherwise issue shares of the Company's common stock at a price below its then-current net asset value per share;

Authorization to issue warrants, options or rights to subscribe for or convert into the Company's common stock;

Approval of the Amended and Restated Investment Advisory Agreement between the Company and its current investment adviser, EAM;

Approval of the Amended and Restated Subadvisory Agreement by and among MACC, EAM and IAIA.

Refer to the discussion in note 1 with regard to the impact of these actions on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

On December 13, 2010, the Company paid \$693,263 to the Bank in the form of a principal payment on the outstanding note payable with the Bank. The payment was made from proceeds of a portfolio company exit transaction and in accordance with the terms outlined in the note payable. Subsequent to the payment, the balance of the note payable on December 13, 2010 was \$2,663,029. It is expected that MACC will enter into an extension of the note payable on or about January 10, 2011 which will extend the maturity date of the note payable to July 10, 2011.

In December 2010 it was announced that portfolio company, Monitronics International, Inc. was sold. Details of the sale and the impact on MACC's holdings are unknown to MACC as of the date of this report on Form 10-K.

- 39 -

### (8) FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Company has presented the following disclosures pertaining to common stockholders, as required by the AICPA Audit and Accounting Guide for Investment Companies, for the years ended September 30:

		2010	2009	2008	2007	2006
Per Share Operating Performance						
(For a share of capital stock outstandi	ng					
throughout the period):						
Net asset value, beginning of period	l	\$ 3.17	4.23	4.67	4.71	5.54
Income from investment operations:		(0.00)	(0.00)	(0.4.0)	(0.00)	(0.40)
	ent expense, net	(0.32)	(0.23)	(0.18)	(0.32)	(0.48)
	zed and unrealized					
(loss)						
gain o transacti	n investment ons	(0.44)	(0.83)	(0.26)	0.28	(0.35)
Тс	otal from investment	(0.76)	(1.06)	(0.44)	(0.04)	(0.83)
operation	ns					
Net asset value, end of period		\$ 2.41	3.17	4.23	4.67	4.71
Closing market price		\$ 0.85	0.80	1.36	2.45	1.78
		2010	2009	2008	2007	2006
Total return						
Net asset value basis (1)		(23.83)%	(25.16)	(9.42)	(0.84)	(14.98)
Market price basis		6.25%	(41.18)	(44.49)	37.64	(30.74)
Net asset value, end of period						
(in thousands)		\$ 5,948	7,809	10,435	11,521	11,618
Ratio to average net assets:	in a a mat (1)	$(10.27)0^{4}$	(6.00)	(4.12)	(6.71)	(9.52)
Investment (expense)		(10.37)%	(6.09)	(4.12)	(6.71)	(8.53)
Operating and income	tax expense (1)	15.67%	12.29	12.92	15.22	18.46

(1) MACC's investment advisor, EAM elected to voluntarily waive its management fees during fiscal year 2010 and April through September, 2009. Due to the election, the investment advisor voluntarily waived \$114,614 as of September 30, 2010 and \$60,753 as of September 30, 2009. The effects of the waiver as of September 30, 2010 would be, total return on net assets value basis would be (25.30%); the investment (expense) income, net ratio would be (12.0%); and the operating and income expense ratio would be (25.74%); the investment (expense) income, net ratio would be (6.75%); and the operating and income expense ratio would be (25.74%); the investment (expense) income, net ratio would be (6.75%); and the operating and income expense ratio would be 12.97%.

The ratios of investment (expense) income, net to average net assets, of operating and income tax expenses to average net assets and total return are calculated for common stockholders as a class. Total return, which reflects the annual change in net assets, was calculated using the change in net assets between the beginning and end of the year. An

individual common stockholder's return may vary from these returns.

- 40 -

## (9) SELECTED QUARTERLY DATA (unaudited)

		20	10	
	4th Quarter	3rd Quarter	2nd Quarter	1st Quarter
Total Investment Income	\$167,043	\$56,330	\$78,775	\$93,191
Interest Expense	51,965	67,914	67,811	71,063
Management and Professional	210,815	133,841	113,742	122,031
Fees		,		,
Other Expenses	117,324	78,033	65,056	69,958
Investment Expense, Net	(213,061)	(223,458)	(167,834)	(169,861)
Net gain (loss) on investments	(1,144,861)	826,589	(445,152)	(323,671)
Net Change in Net Assets from Operations	(1,357,922)	603,131	(612,986)	(493,532)
Net Change in Net Assets from Operations per Share	\$(0.55)	\$0.24	\$(0.25)	\$(0.20)
Net Asset Value per Share	\$2.41	\$2.96	\$2.72	\$2.97
		20	09	
	4th Quarter	3rd Quarter	2nd Quarter	1st Quarter
Total Investment Income	\$141,403	\$152,445	\$81,763	\$211,379
Interest Expense	74,647	85,745	70,895	72,507
Management and Professional Fees	127,877	95,909	184,686	132,171
Other Expenses	95,008	70,903	64,731	88,721
Investment Expense, Net	(156,129)	(100,112)	(238,549)	(82,020)
Net gain (loss) on investments	(91,979)	(1,075,523)	(1,150,381)	269,100
Net Change in Net Assets from Operations	(248,108)	(1,175,635)	(1,175,635)	187,080
Net Change in Net Assets from Operations per Share	\$(0.10)	\$(0.48)	\$(0.56)	\$0.08
Net Asset Value per Share	\$3.17	\$3.27	\$3.75	\$4.31
		20	08	
	4th Quarter	3rd Quarter	2nd Quarter	1st Quarter
Total Investment Income	\$219,400	\$281,861	\$194,298	\$260,004
Interest Expense	77,871	93,377	108,812	128,115
Management and Professional Fees	118,538	174,370	262,105	122,684
Other Expenses	71,579	94,274	94,865	56,764
Investment Expense, Net	(48,588)	(80,160)	(271,484)	(47,559)
Net gain (loss) on investments	(339,926)	611,097	(187,855)	(721,354)
Net Change in Net Assets from Operations	(388,514)	530,937	(459,339)	(768,913)
Net Change in Net Assets from Operations per Share	\$(0.16)	\$0.21	\$(0.18)	\$(0.31)
Net Asset Value per Share	\$4.23	\$4.39	\$4.18	\$4.36

## (10) PORTFOLIO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR

CASH ADDITIONS TO PREVIOUS INVESTMENTS DISPOSITIONS							
		Amount					Amount
		Invested			Cost	F	Received
Detroit Tool Metal Products*	\$	33,342	Feed Management Systems, Inc.	\$	2,001,495	\$ 1	,288,285
Superior Holding, Inc.*		39,000	Handy Industries, LLC		269,093		0
			M.A. Gedney Company		1,526,601		76,000
			Pratt-Read Corporation		1,444,467		0
	\$	72,342		\$	5,241,656\$		1,364,285
			REPAYMENTS RECEIVED			\$	199,128

\* These investments were co-investments with another fund managed by InvestAmerica.

- 42 -

#### SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS SCHEDULE 1 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

## Manufacturing:

Manufacturing:		Percent of Net		
Company	Security	assets	Value	Cost (d)
Aviation Manufacturing	14% debt security, due	\$		
Group, LLC (a)	December 31, 2011		616,000	616,000
Yankton, South Dakota	154,000 units preferred		154,000	154,000
Manufacturer of flight	Membership interest			
critical parts for aircraft	14% note, due December		802,215	39
	31, 2011		77,000	77,000
			1,649,215	847,039
Detroit Tool Metal	12% debt security, due		1 251 500	1 010 005
Products Co. (a)	December 31, 2011		1,371,508	1,912,087
Lebanon, Missouri	19,853.94 shares Series A			105 021
	preferred (c)			195,231
Metal stamping	7,887.17 shares common (c)			126,742
	8% debt security, due		22.240	22.242
	December 31, 2011		33,342	33,342
			1,404,850	2,267,402
Linton Truss Corporation	542.8 common shares (c)			
Delray Beach, Florida	400 shares Series 1			
Dellay Beach, Fiolida	preferred (c)		9,336	40,000
Manufacturer of residential			7,550	+0,000
roof and	common shares (c)			36
floor truss systems	common shares (c)			50
noor truss systems			9,336	40,036
			,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	10,050
Magnum Systems, Inc. (a)	12% debt security, due			
······································	November 1, 2011		430,622	430,622
Parsons, Kansas	48,038 common shares (c)		48,038	48,038
	292,800 shares preferred (c)		,	,
bagging equipment	Warrant to purchase 56,529		304,512	304,512
	common shares (c)		968,245	565
			1,751,417	783,737
Spectrum Products, LLC	13% debt security, due			
(b)	January 1, 2011 (c)		1,077,542	1,077,649
Missoula, Montana	385,000 units Series A preferred (c)			385,000
Manufacturer of equipment	•			
for the swimming pool	i membersnip interest (c)			351
industry				47,355
maasu y				+1,555

	3.50 units Class B red (c)		
		1,077,542	1,510,355
Superior Holding, Inc. (a)	6% debt security, due April 1, 2013 (c)	370,608	780,000
Wichita, Kansas	Warrant to purchase 11,143 common shares (c)		1
Manufacturer of industrial and	6% debt security, due April 1, 2013 (c)	110,000	221,000
commercial boilers and shower	121,457 common shares (c)		121,457
doors, frames and enclosures	s 6% debt security, due April 1, 2013 (c)	150,000	308,880
	312,000 common shares (c)		3,120
	12% debt security, April 1, 2013	23,000	39,000
	12% debt security, April 1, 2013	23,000	,
		676,608	1,512,458
Total manufacturing		71% 6,568,968	6,961,027

### SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS CONTINUED... SCHEDULE 1 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

Service:

Scivice.	~ .	Percent of			~
Company	Security	Net assets		Value	Cost (d)
Monitronics International, Inc.	73,214 common shares (c)			682,354	54,703
Dallas, Texas					
Provides home security systems monitoring services					
Morgan Ohare, Inc. (b)	0% debt security, due January 1, 2011 (c)			848,219	1,125,000
Addison, Illinois	10% debt security, due January 1, 2011			231,771	231,771
Fastener plating and heat treating	57 common shares (c)			1	1
U				1,079,991	1,356,772
SMWC Acquisition Co., Inc. (a)	12% debt security due September 30, 2011			220,000	220,000
Kansas City, Missouri Steel warehouse	145,397 shares Series A preferred (c)			90,000	290,794
distribution and Processing	I ()			310,000	510,794
Total Service		23 %		2,072,345	1,922,269
Technology and Communi	ications:				
Feed Management System	s, Inc. (a) Escrow (c)			75,504	151,007
Brooklyn Center, Minneso and B2B internet services	ta				
and D2D internet services					
Portrait Displays, Inc.	10% debt security 2012	, due April 1,		509,833	637,292
Pleasanton, California	Warrant to purcha common shares (c				
Designs and markets pivot software for LCD compute monitors	enabling	,		509,833	637,292
Total technology and communications			6 %	585,337	788,299

\$ 9,226,650 9,671,595

## SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS.

- 44 -

### SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS CONTINUED... SCHEDULE 1 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

(a) Affiliated company. Represents ownership of greater than 5% to 25% of the outstanding voting securities of the issuer, and is or was an affiliate of MACC Private Equities Inc. as defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940 at or during the period ended September 30, 2010. Transactions during the period in which the issuers were affiliated companies are as follows:

	Beginning		Ending	Dividend I	nterest	Net Realized
Description	Cost I	Purchases Sales	Cost	Income	Income	Gains/Losses
Aviation Manufacturing	\$ 847,039		847,039	53,631	97,020	
Group, LLC						
Detroit Tool Metal Products	1,693,480	573,922	2,267,402	(	(241,843)	540,579
Co.						
Feed Management Systems,	2,001,495	1,850,	488 151,007	88,496		(562,203)
Inc.						
Handy Industries, LLC	269,093	269,	093	·		(269,093)
M.A. Gedney Company	1,526,601	1,526,	601	·		(1,450,601)
Magnum Systems, Inc.	927,278	143,	541 783,737	42,632	55,072	
Pratt-Read Corporation	1,444,467	1,444,4	467			(1,444,467)
SMWC Acquisition Co., Inc	481,250	29,544	510,794		42,891	
Superior Holding, Inc.	1,473,458	39,000	1,512,458		8,510	
- 0						
Total	\$ 10,664,161	642,4665,234,	1906,072,437	184,759	(38,350)	(3,185,785)

Purchases above include interest capitalized and incremental principal received in connection with the restructuring of the Company's investments in Detroit Tool Metal Products Co. and SMWC Acquisition Co., Inc. of \$540,579 and \$29,544 respectively.

(b) Controlled company. Represents ownership of greater than 25% of the outstanding voting securities of the issuer, and is or was a controlled affiliate of MACC as defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940 at or during the period ended September 30, 2010. Transactions during the period in which the issuers were controlled affiliates are as follows:

	Begin	nning Purch	ase Sales	Ending	Dividen	dInterest	Net Realized
Description	Cost	Cost	Cost	Cost	Income	Income	Gains/Losses
Morgan Ohare, Inc.	\$ 1,36	4,584	7,8	812 1,356,77		(30,602)	
Spectrum Products, LLC	1,51	0,355		1,510,35	55	211,867	
Total	\$ 2,87	4,939	7,8	312 2,867,12	27	181,265	

(c) Presently nonincome producing.

(d) For all debt securities presented, the cost is equal to the principal balance.

### Notes to SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

(A) For investments held at the February 15, 1995 fresh-start date, the stated cost represents the fair value at the fresh-start date.

(B) At September 30, 2010, all securities are considered to be restricted in their disposition and are stated at what the Board of Directors considers to be fair value.

- 45 -

### NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS CONTINUED...

#### SCHEDULE 1 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

(C) At September 30, 2010, the cost of securities for federal income tax purposes was \$9,876,908, and the aggregate unrealized appreciation/depreciation (including other basis differences) based on that cost was:

Unrealized appreciation		\$1,475,878
Unrealized depreciation		(825,620)
	Net unrealized depreciation	\$ 650,258

(D) MACC owns a portfolio which includes investments in restricted securities of small businesses. Within this portfolio, five of these restricted securities include registration rights and six of these restricted securities do not include registration rights. Within the five securities that include registration rights, the actual rights include the following general characteristics:

1. The securities generally provide for demand rights as follows:

a. The demand rights may only be required from a low of 25% of the security holders to a high of a majority of the security holders.

b. The security holders may require from one to two demand registrations

c. The small businesses are generally only required to use "best efforts" to comply with the demands.

2. The securities generally allow the security holders to register securities if the small business registers its securities, i.e. "piggyback rights."

a. Piggyback rights generally may be accessed by individual security holders

b. Under piggyback rights, the small business and its investment bankers are only required to use best efforts to comply with the right.

3. The Company expects that, in general, the securities that they will acquire in the future will include demand and piggyback rights.

- 46 -

## SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS SCHEDULE 1 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

## Manufacturing:

		Percent of Net		
Company	Security	Assets	Value	Cost (d)
Aviation Manufacturing Group, LLC (a)	14% debt security, due October 1, 2010 (c)	\$	616,000	616,000
Yankton, South Dakota	154,000 units preferred		154,000	154,000
Manufacturer of flight critical	Membership interest		771,039	39
parts for aircraft	14% note, due October 1, 2010		77,000	77,000
			1,618,039	847,039
Detroit Tool Metal Products	•		1,371,507	1,371,507
Co. (a)	November 18, 2009			105 221
Lebanon, Missouri	19,853.94 shares Series A preferred (c)			195,231
Metal stamping	7,887.17 shares common (c)			126,742
			1,371,507	1,693,480
Handy Industries, LLC (a)	1,015.79 units Class A1 preferred (c)		67,042	269,093
Marshalltown, Iowa				
Manufacturer of lifts for				
motorcycles, trucks and				
industrial metal products				
	<b>542</b> 9			
Linton Truss Corporation Delray Beach, Florida	542.8 common shares (c) 400 shares Series 1 preferred		75,000	40,000
Denay Beach, Fiolida	(c)		75,000	40,000
Manufacturer of residential	Warrants to purchase common		36	36
roof and	shares (c)		50	50
floor truss systems				
			75,036	40,036
M.A. Gedney Company (a)	648,783 shares preferred (c)			1,450,601
Chaska, Minnesota	12% debt security, due June 30,2012		1	76,000
Pickle Processor	Warrant to purchase 83,573 preferred shares			
	(c)			
			1	1,526,601
Magnum Systems, Inc. (a)			574,163	574,163

	12% debt security, due November 1, 2011		
Parsons, Kansas	48,038 common shares (c)	48,038	48,038
Manufacturer of industrial bagging	292,800 shares preferred (c)	304,512	304,512
equipment	Warrant to purchase 56,529 common shares		
	(c)	330,565	565
		1,257,278	927,278
Pratt-Read Corporation (a)	13,889 shares Series A Preferred (c)		750,000
Bridgeport, Connecticut	7,718 shares Service A preferred (c)		416,667
Manufacturer of screwdriver shafts	13% debt security, due January 7, 2009 (c)	1	277,800
and handles and other hand tools	Warrants to purchase common shares (c)		
		1	1,444,467
Spectrum Products, LLC (b)	13% debt security, due January 1, 2011 (c)	1,077,649	1,077,649
Missoula, Montana	385,000 units Series A preferred (c)	385,000	385,000
Manufacturer of equipment for the	Membership interest (c)	351	351
swimming pool industry	35,073.50 units Class B preferred (c)	47,355	47,355
	· · · · ·	1,510,355	1,510,355

#### SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS CONTINUED... SCHEDULE 1 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

## Manufacturing:

		Percent		
Company	Security	of Net Assets	Value	Cost (d)
Superior Holding, Inc. (a)	6% debt security, due April 1, 2010 (c)		568,727	780,000
Wichita, Kansas	Warrant to purchase 11,143 common Shares (c)		1	1
Manufacturer of industrial and	6% debt security, due April 1, 2010 (c)		221,000	221,000
commercial boilers and shower	121,457 common shares (c)			121,457
doors, frames and enclosures	6% debt security, due April 1, 2010 (c)		308,880	308,880
	312,000 common shares (c)			3,120
	19% debt security, January 1, 2010 (c)		39,000	39,000
			1,137,608	1,473,458
-		60.00		
Total manufacturing		60%	7,036,867	9,731,807
Service:				
Monitronics International, Inc.	73,214 common shares (c)		439,284	54,703
Dallas, Texas	73,21 ( common shares (c)		137,201	51,705
Provides home security systems				
monitoring services				
<b>3 1 3 1 1</b>				
Morgan Ohare, Inc. (b)	0% debt security, due January 1, 2010 (	c)	900,000	1,125,000
Addison, Illinois	10% debt security, due January 1, 2010		191,666	239,583
Fastener plating and heat treating	57 common shares (c)		1	1
-			1,091,667	1,364,584
SMWC Acquisition Co., Inc. (a	) 13% debt security due September 30, 2011		68,750	68,750
Kansas City, Missouri	<ul><li>12% debt security due September 30,</li><li>2011</li></ul>		412,500	412,500
Steel warehouse distribution and	d		481,250	481,250
processing				
Total Service		17%	2,012,201	1,900,537
Technology and				
Communications:				
Feed Management Contact I	540 551 common all and (c)			1 207 106
Feed Management Systems, Inc	c. 540,551 common shares (c)			1,327,186
(a) Brooklyn Center, Minnesota	674,309 shares Series A preferred (c)		2,041,136	674,309
DIOORIYII COMEI, MIIIIIESOla	017,509 shares series A preferred (C)		2,041,130	074,509

and B2B internet services			2041,136	2,001,495
Portrait Displays, Inc.	10% debt security, due April 1, 2012		685,068	685,068
Pleasanton, California	Warrant to purchase 39,400 common Shares (c)			
Designs and markets pivot enabling			685,068	685,068
software for LCD computer				
monitors				
Total technology and				
communications		<b>.</b>		
		23%	2,726,204	2,686,563
			\$ 11,775,272	14,318,907

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS.

- 48 -

#### SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS CONTINUED... SCHEDULE 1 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

(a) Affiliated company. Represents ownership of greater than 5% to 25% of the outstanding voting securities of the issuer, and is or was an affiliate of MACC Private Equities Inc. as defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940 at or during the period ended September 30, 2009. Transactions during the period in which the issuers were affiliated companies are as follows:

	Beginning		I	Ending	Dividend	Interest	Net Realized
Description	Cost l	Purchases Sa	ales (	Cost	Income	Income	Gains/Losses
Aviation Manufacturing	\$ 847,039			847,039	51,550	97,020	)
Group, LLC							
Detroit Tool Metal Products	1,693,480			1,693,480		26,529	)
Co.							
Feed Management Systems,	2,001,495			2,001,495			
Inc.							
Handy Industries, LLC	835,855	100,565	667,327	269,093			- (667,327)
Kwik-Way Products, Inc.	768,610		768,610				. (768,610)
M.A. Gedney Company	1,526,601			1,526,601		(21,609)	)
Magnum Systems, Inc.	927,278			927,278	109,624	68,899	)
MainStream Data, Inc.	200,049		200,049				. (99,992)
Pratt-Read Corporation	1,444,467			1,444,467			
SMWC Acquisition Co., Inc	554,675		73,425	481,250		61,537	
Superior Holding, Inc.	1,434,458	39,000		1,473,458		4,411	
- V							

#### Total

\$ 12,234,007 139,5651,709,41110,664,161 161,174 236,787 (1,535,929)

(b) Controlled company. Represents ownership of greater than 25% of the outstanding voting securities of the issuer, and is or was a controlled affiliate of MACC as defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940 at or during the period ended September 30, 2009. Transactions during the period in which the issuers were controlled affiliates are as follows:

		Begin	nning Purch	nase S	Sales	Ending	Dividend	Interest	Net Realized
Description		Cost	Cost	(	Cost	Cost	Income	Income	Gains/Losses
Morgan Ohare, Inc.	\$	1,42	1,876		57,29	2 1,364,584	4	- 24,957	
Spectrum Products, LLC		1,51	0,355			1,510,355	5 26,766	5	
Total	\$	2,93	2,231		57,29	2 2,874,939	9 26,766	5 24,957	

(c) Presently nonincome producing.

(d) For all debt securities presented, the cost is equal to the principal balance.

### Notes to SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

(A) For investments held at the February 15, 1995 fresh-start date, the stated cost represents the fair value at the fresh-start date.

(B) At September 30, 2009, all securities are considered to be restricted in their disposition and are stated at what the Board of Directors considers to be fair value.

(C) At September 30, 2009, the cost of securities for federal income tax purposes was \$13,897,452, and the aggregate unrealized appreciation/depreciation (including other basis differences) based on that cost was:

Unrealized appreciation	\$ 1,634,049
Unrealized depreciation	(3,831,092)
Net unrealized depreciation	\$ (2,197,043)

- 49 -

Notes to SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS CONTINUED... SCHEDULE 1 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

(D) MACC owns a portfolio which includes investments in restricted securities of small businesses. Within this portfolio, eight of these restricted securities include registration rights and six of these restricted securities do not include registration rights. Within the eight securities that include registration rights, the actual rights include the following general characteristics:

1. The securities generally provide for demand rights as follows:

a. The demand rights may only be required from a low of 25% of the security holders to a high of a majority of the security holders.

b. The security holders may require from one to two demand registrations.

c. The small businesses are generally only required to use "best efforts" to comply with the demands.

2. The securities generally allow the security holders to register securities if the small business registers its securities, i.e. "piggyback rights."

a. Piggyback rights generally may be accessed by individual security holders.

b. Under piggyback rights, the small business and its investment bankers are only required to use best efforts to comply with the right.

3. The Company expects that, in general, the securities that they will acquire in the future will include demand and piggyback rights.

- 50 -

ItemChanges in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure. 9.

There are no items to report.

Item Controls and Procedures. 9A.

(a)

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of September 30, 2010, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of MACC (the "Certifying Officers") conducted evaluations of MACC's disclosure controls and procedures. Disclosure controls and procedures means controls and other procedures of an issuer that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the issuer in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Commission's rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by an issuer in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the issuer's management, including its principal executive officer or officers and principal financial officer or officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. The Certifying Officers have evaluated MACC's disclosure controls and procedures and have concluded, as a result of the identification of material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting, that those disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of September 30, 2010.

(b) Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. MACC's internal control system is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and includes policies and procedures that: 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect transactions and dispositions of assets; 2) provide reasonable assurances that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and the directors of MACC; and 3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of MACC's assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Because of these limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of MACC's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Management assessed the effectiveness of MACC's internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2010 using the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. In performing the assessment, management identified the following material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting:

 MACC's policies and procedures over the preparation and accumulation of information used in the investments valuation process and management's review thereof are not appropriately designed to identify matters that may affect the appropriateness and reliability of information provided to the valuation committee. Specifically, our policies and procedures and management review controls were not designed to ensure the appropriateness and consistency in (a) the preparation of the portfolio company financial information provided to the valuation committee, (b) the procedures used to ensure the relevancy and reliability of the underlying financial information provided by the portfolio companies, and (c) the methods used to value MACC's individual investments

- 51 -

2) MACC's entity-level policies and procedures for monitoring internal control over financial reporting were not sufficient. Specifically, we did not have sufficient personnel with an appropriate level of technical accounting knowledge, experience, and training who could execute appropriate monitoring controls and perform adequate supervisory reviews over the investments valuation process. This material weakness contributed to the additional material weakness discussed above.

These material weaknesses resulted in an adjustment to the allocation of the decline in fair value to individual investment holdings in one portfolio company that has been reflected in the financial statements included herein.

As a result of these material weaknesses, we have concluded that internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of September 30, 2010.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the MACC's registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting due to the established rules of the SEC and Section 989G of the Dodd-Frank Act of 2010.

(c)

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended September 30, 2010 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting. (d) Remediation Plan

At the Company's annual shareholder meeting held on November 30, 2010, shareholders voted against giving the Company the ability to raise additional capital through the issuance of shares of Company common stock at a price below its then-current net asset value per share or the ability to issue warrants, options or rights to subscribe for or convert into Company common stock. Without the authorization to sell shares at below net asset value, the Company's ability to raise funding through the capital markets has become limited. In addition, the shareholders voted against approving the Amended and Restated investment Advisory Agreement between MACC and its current investment adviser, EAM, as well as against the approval of the Amended and Restated Subadvisory Agreement with IAIA. As a result of these uncertainties relative to the future of MACC's ongoing operations, MACC has not yet developed a remediation plan to address the material weaknesses identified above.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.

- 52 -

### PART III

#### Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

#### Directors and Executive Officers

Our business and affairs are managed under the direction of our Board. Accordingly, our Board provides broad supervision over our affairs, including supervision of the duties performed by our Adviser and Subadviser. Certain employees of our Adviser are responsible for our day-to-day operations. The names, ages and addresses of our Directors and specified executive officers, together with their principal occupations and other affiliations during the past five years, are set forth below. Each Director and officer will hold office for a one year term to which he or she is elected and until his successor is duly elected and qualifies, or until he resigns or is removed in the manner provided by law. Our Board consists of a majority of Independent Director." The address for all officers and Directors is 2533 South Coast Highway 101, Suite 240, Cardiff-By-The-Sea, California 92007. None of our Directors or officers serve as a director for any other company which (i) has a class of securities registered under section 12 of the Exchange Act, (ii) is subject to section 15(d) of the Exchange Act, or (iii) is registered as an investment company under the 1940 Act; and MACC only has one investment portfolio.

#### **Director Qualifications**

The table below discusses the experiences, qualifications and skills of each of our Directors which led to the conclusion that they should serve as such.

Director	Experiences, Qualifications and Skills
Mr. Roth	Mr. Roth has served as a director since 2000. As a certified public accountant, as Chairman of his own firm and prior to that as a partner at Deloitte & Touche, Mr. Roth was originally asked to join the Board to serve as the Audit Committee's financial expert. In his current position with RCP and throughout his service to us, Mr. Roth has helped the Board evaluate strategic options. In addition, Mr. Roth has helped create our current strategy to change our investment focus. Given his background as a CPA, his long Board service, his primary investment banking activities, and experience, Mr. Roth provides important skills to the Board as the Company continues to explore its future direction.
Mr. Gadawski	Mr. Gadawski was recently recruited to serve on the Board to serve as a member of the Audit Committee and as that Committee's financial expert. In addition, Mr. Gadawski's career in smaller high growth companies is important to the Board and as the Company continues to explore its future direction.
Mr. Eiler	Mr. Eiler was asked to join the Board in 2007 due to his long career in financial services, including as CEO overseeing an extensive loan portfolio and as an investment banker. Mr. Eiler's extensive finance experience is important to management of our Existing Portfolio as the Company continues to explore its future direction.

Mr. Dunn Mr. Dunn has served as a Director since its inception and brings that experience to his continued service. As the principal owner and CEO of a bank holding company and affiliates, Mr. Dunn brings the perspective of a highly-regulated financial industry to the Board and serves as the Chair of the Audit Committee.

- 53 -

### DIRECTORS:

Name and Age	Position(s) Held with the Company		e Principal Occupation(s) During Past 5 Years
Gordon J. Roth, 56†	Director	Since 2000	CFO and Chief Operating Officer, Roth Capital Partners, LLC (independent investment banking firm specializing in small-cap companies), 2000-present; Chairman, Roth & Company, P.C. (public accounting firm located in Des Moines, Iowa), 1990-2000. Prior to that, Mr. Roth was a partner at Deloitte & Touche, a public accounting firm, in Des Moines.
Kevin J. Gadawski, 43	Director	Since January 2010	, President, NL Strategies, Inc. (a financial and strategic consulting firm), 2007-present; Owner and President of First Check Diagnostics, LLC (manufacturer of medical devices), 2004-2007; COO and CFO, Worldwide Medical, 2002-2004; CFO, California Software, 2001-2002; Prior to 2001, Mr. Gadawski was CFO at e-net Financial, a company providing mortgage services to both commercial and consumer markets. Mr. Gadawski is a Certified Pubic Accountant and has a Bachelors of Science in Accounting from Northern Kentucky University.
James W. Eiler, 59	Director	Since January 2008	, Principal, Eiler Capital Advisors (Investment Banking), since 2007; Managing Director, First National Investment Bank (Investment Banking), 2007; Managing Partner, Cybus Capital Markets (Investment banking), 2004-2007; Senior Vice President, John Deere Credit (Agricultural Financial Services), 1999-2004. Mr. Eiler holds an M.S. in Ag Economics and a B.S. in Ag Business from Iowa State University.
Michael W. Dunn, 61	Director	Since 1994; Chairman since December 8, 2009	Director, MorAmerica (1994 – 2008); CEO (since 1980), President and CEO and Director (since 1983), Farmers & Merchants Savings Bank of Manchester, Iowa.

 $\dagger$  As a member of the Board of Managers of EAM, Mr. Roth is an "interested person" of MACC, as that term is defined in Section 2(a)(19) of the 1940 Act.

- 54 -

### Officers:

## **Executive Officers**

Our current officers are listed in the chart below. As affiliated persons of EAM, the officers are "interested persons," as that term is defined in Section 2(a)(19) of the 1940 Act. The address for all officers is 2533 South Coast Highway 101, Suite 240, Cardiff-By-The-Sea, California 92007.

Name and Age Travis T. Prentice, 35	Position(s) Held with MACC President & CEO	of Time Served Since April,	Principal Occupation(s)
Derek J. Gaertner, 39	Chief Financial Officer & CCO	April,	Vice President and Chief Operating/ Compliance Officer of Eudaimonia. Prior to joining Eudaimonia in 2007, Mr. Gaertner was the Chief Financial Officer of Torrey Pines Capital Management, a global long/short equity hedge fund located in San Diego, California. He was also responsible for overseeing the firm's regulatory compliance and operations functions. Prior to joining Torrey Pines Capital Management in 2004, Mr. Gaertner was a Tax Manager with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. He has over 8 years of public accounting experience in both the audit and tax departments. Mr. Gaertner is a Certified Public Accountant and has a Bachelors of Science in Accounting from the University of Southern California and Masters of Science in Taxation from Golden Gate University, San Francisco.
Montie L. Weisenberger, 42	Treasurer & Secretary	April,	Senior Vice President and Portfolio Manager of Eudaimonia, a firm he co-founded in 2007. Mr. Weisenberger has primary portfolio management responsibilities for the firm's Small Cap Growth investment strategy. Prior to founding Eudaimonia, Mr. Weisenberger was a Senior Vice President and Portfolio Manager at Nicholas Applegate Capital Management where he had lead portfolio management responsibilities for the firm's Traditional Small-to-Mid Cap Growth strategy and was a senior member of the firm's US Micro / Emerging Growth team since 2001. Prior to joining Nicholas Applegate Capital Management, Montie was a research analyst at Adams, Harkness & Hill, now Cannacord Adams, an emerging growth investment bank located in Boston, MA.

Mr. Weisenberger also spent more than five years as a finance and strategic management consultant, most recently as a manager with KPMG, LLP. Mr. Weisenberger brings more than fourteen years of combined investment management and financial analysis experience to Eudaimonia Asset Management. He holds a Masters in Business Administration and a Masters in Health Administration from Georgia State University and a Bachelor of Arts in Business Administration from Flagler College.

## Common Stock Ownership

As of December 15, 2010, there were 2,464,621 shares of common stock issued and outstanding. Because they serve as our investment advisers, EAM, a California limited liability company located at 2533 South Coast Highway 101, Suite 240, Cardiff-By-The-Sea, California 92007, and IAIA, a Delaware corporation located at 101 Second Street S.E., Suite 800, Cedar Rapids IA 52401, are deemed to control us, within the meaning of the 1940 Act. Additionally, Bridgewater

- 55 -

International Group, LLC ("BIG") and Mr. Benjamin Jiaravanon (a former Director) control MACC through either direct or beneficial ownership of 804,689 of our shares, which as of August 19, 2010 comprised 32.65% of our issued and outstanding stock. BIG is organized under the laws of the State of Utah.

Our officers and directors, eight in number as a group, beneficially own 114,517 shares together, equal to 4.65% of our outstanding common stock. The following table sets forth certain information as of October 1, 2010, with respect to the common stock ownership of: (i) those persons or groups (as that term is used in Section 13(d)(3) of the 1934 Act who beneficially own more than 5% of our common stock, and (ii) each Director. Unless otherwise indicated, the addresses for the persons listed in the table is 2533 South Coast Highway 101, Suite 240, Cardiff-By-The-Sea, California 92007.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner	Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership	Percent of Class of Voting common stock
Bridgewater International Group, LLC (1) 10500 South 1300 West, South Jordan, Utah 84095	804,689	32.65%
Benjamin Jiaravanon (1) Ancol Barat, J1 Ancol VIII, No.1, Jakarta 14430 Indonesia	804,689	32.65%
Geoffrey T. Woolley	151,314	6.14%
Gordon J. Roth(2)	57,783	2.27%
Michael W. Dunn	46,734	1.90%
James W. Eiler	10,000	0.04%
Kevin J. Gadawski	0	0.00%
All Officers and Directors as a Group	114,517	4.65%

(1) The foregoing information with respect to BIG and Mr. Jiaravanon is based upon Amendment No. 1 to Schedule 13D, dated August 8, 2003, as subsequently amended October 10, 2003, March 9, 2005, May 3, 2005, May 19, 2005 and August 19, 2010, filed by BIG and others with the SEC (collectively, the "BIG Group 13D"). The BIG Group 13D disclosed control over 804,689 shares of common stock owned by BIG (the "BIG Shares"). BIG retains control of voting of the BIG Shares, including all other incidents of ownership of the stock, including beneficial ownership and dispositive power.

As the sole Manager of BIG, Mr. Jiaravanon maintains control over the voting power respecting the BIG Shares. BIG is a wholly owned subsidiary of Aleksin, a corporation organized under the laws of the British Virgin Islands. Aleksin is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Maze Industrial Ltd. ("Maze"), a corporation organized under the laws of the British Virgin Islands. Maze is 100% owned by Sumet Jiaravanon, an individual.

(2) Mr. Roth individually owns 5,151 shares of common stock. RCP, in which Mr. Roth has shared control of voting power, owns 52,632 shares of common stock

## Common stock Ownership of Directors

The following table represents, as of September 20, 2010 and based upon the closing price as quoted on the OTCQB of 0.63 per common share on that date, the dollar range value of equity securities beneficially owned (as that term is defined in Rule 16a-1(a)(2) of the 1934 Act) by each Director.

Name of Independent Director Michael W. Dunn Kevin J. Gadawski James W. Eiler	Dollar Range of Equity Securities in the Corporation \$10,001 - \$50,000 \$0 \$1- \$10,000	Aggregate Dollar Range of Equity Securities in all Funds in Fund Complex† \$10,001 - \$50,000 \$0 \$1- \$10,000
Name of	Dollar Range of Equity	Aggregate Dollar Range of Equity
Interested Director	Securities in the Corporation	Securities
Gordon J. Roth	\$10,001- \$50,000	in all Funds in Fund Complex†
†MACC consists of on	ly one investment portfolio.	\$10,001- \$50,000

- 56 -

#### Audit Committee

The Board has a standing Audit Committee which makes recommendations to the Board regarding the engagement of the independent registered public accounting firm for audit and non-audit services; evaluates the independence of the auditors and reviews with the independent auditors the fee, scope and timing of audit and non-audit services. The Audit Committee also is charged with monitoring our Policy Against Insider Trading and Prohibited Transactions and our Code of Conduct. The Audit Committee presently consists of Michael W. Dunn (Chair), James W. Eiler and Kevin J. Gadawski. Each member of the Audit Committee is considered "independent" under applicable Nasdaq listing standards. The Board has determined that James W. Eiler is an Audit Committee financial expert. The Audit Committee held four (4) meetings in Fiscal Year 2010.

#### Investment and Valuation Committee

The Investment and Valuation Committee assists the Board with the periodic valuation of our investment securities and with oversight of our investment portfolio and evaluates any proposed revisions to our investment policy. The Investment and Valuation Committee also assures compliance with our valuation policy and policies regarding investments made in participation with other funds managed by InvestAmerica, with entities controlling, controlled by or under common control with InvestAmerica, and with other affiliates. The voting members of the Investment and Valuation Committee presently include Michael W. Dunn, James W. Eiler and Gordon J. Roth (Chair). Mr. Dunn and Mr. Eiler are independent under Nasdaq listing standards. The Investment and Valuation Committee held four (4) meetings in Fiscal Year 2010.

#### Corporate Governance / Nominating Committee

The Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee was appointed by the Board to identify and recommend approval of all Director nominees to be voted on at the Annual Stockholders' Meetings, to recommend corporate governance guidelines for the Company, to lead the Board in its annual review of the Board's performance, and to recommend to the Board nominees for each committee of the Board. The Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee may seek input from other Directors or senior management in identifying candidates. Under our Third Amended and Restated Bylaws, stockholders desiring to nominate persons for election as Directors or to propose other business for consideration at an annual meeting must notify the Secretary of MACC in writing not less than 60 days, nor more than 90 days, prior to the date on which MACC first mailed its proxy materials for the prior year's annual meeting.

The qualifications used in evaluating Director candidates include but are not limited to: independence, time commitments, attendance, business judgment, management, accounting, finance, industry and technology knowledge, as well as, personal and professional ethics, integrity and values. In addition, as set forth in its Charter, the Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee believes that having directors with relevant experience in business and industry, government, finance and other areas is beneficial to the Board as a whole. The Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee further reviews the qualifications of any candidate in the context of the current composition of the Board and the needs of MACC. The same identifying and evaluating procedures apply to all candidates for director nomination, whether nominated by stockholders or by the Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee.

The Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee also: (i) oversees the formulation of, and recommends for adoption to the Board, a set of corporate governance guidelines; (ii) periodically reviews and reassesses the corporate governance guidelines and recommends appropriate changes to the Board for approval; (iii) reviews and approves annually the MACC's compensation program for service on the Board or any of its committees; (iv) performs an annual assessment of the Board's performance and periodically reports its Board assessments to the Board; (v) annually reviews and assesses its Charter and makes recommendations of appropriate changes to the Board; (vi) performs periodic reviews of all Board committee structure and governance charters; (vii) recommends appropriate

changes to Board committee composition and responsibility to the Board; and (viii) reviews any conflicts of interest.

The Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee consists of James W. Eiler, Michael W. Dunn and Kevin J. Gadawski. All members of the Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee are considered "independent" under applicable Nasdaq listing standards. The Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee held one meeting in Fiscal Year 2010.

- 57 -

#### Code of Ethics

The Company, the Adviser and the Subadviser have each adopted a code of ethics under Rule 17j-1 of the 1940 Act, which is applicable to the officers, Directors and designated employees of the Company, the Adviser and the Subadviser (collectively, the "Codes of Ethics"). Subject to certain limitations, the Codes of Ethics permit those officers, Directors and designated employees of the Company, the Adviser and the Subadviser (the "Covered Persons") to invest in securities, including securities that may be purchased or held by the Company. The Codes of Ethics contain provisions and requirements designed to identify and address certain conflicts of interest between personal investment activities of Covered Persons and the interests of the investment advisory clients of the Adviser and the Subadviser such as the Company. Among other things, the Codes of Ethics prohibit certain types of transactions absent prior approval, impose time periods during which personal transactions may not be made in certain securities, and requires submission of duplicate broker confirmations and statements and quarterly reporting of securities transactions. Exceptions to these and other provisions of the Codes of Ethics may be granted in particular circumstances after review by appropriate personnel.

The Codes of Ethics can be reviewed and copied at the SEC's Public Reference Room in Washington, D.C. Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at (202) 942-8090. The Codes of Ethics are also available on the EDGAR database on the SEC's internet site at www.sec.gov, and, upon payment of a duplicating fee, by electronic request at the following e-mail address: publicinfo@sec.gov or by writing the SEC's Public Reference Section, Washington, D.C. 20549-0102.

#### Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, officers and directors of the Company and persons beneficially owning 10% or more of the Company's common stock (collectively, "reporting persons") must file reports on Forms 3, 4 and 5 regarding changes in their holdings of the Company's equity securities with the SEC. Based solely upon a review of copies of these reports sent to the Secretary of the Company and/or written representations from reporting persons that no Form 5 was required to be filed with respect to Fiscal Year 2010, the Company believes that all Forms 3, 4, and 5 required to be filed by all reporting persons have been properly and timely filed with the SEC.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

## **Compensation of Directors**

The compensation of our Directors is governed by a compensation policy adopted via resolution of the Board on February 24, 2004 and amended on July 18, 2006 (the "Compensation Policy"). The Compensation Policy provides that: (i) Directors of MACC who are also officers or directors of our investment adviser receive no compensation for serving on the Board; (ii) the Chairman of the Board receives an annual retainer of \$24,000; (iii) all other outside Directors receive an annual retainer of \$8,000; (iv) all outside Directors other than the Chairman of the Board receive \$1,000 for each Board meeting attended (whether such attendance is in person or by telephone) if the meeting is scheduled as an in-person meeting and \$500 for each Board meeting attended by telephone if the meeting is scheduled to be held by teleconference; (v) all Directors other than the Chairman of the Board committee meeting attended (whether such attendance is in person or by telephone if scheduled as an in-person meeting and \$250 for each committee meeting attended by telephone) if the meeting is scheduled as an in-person meeting and \$250 for each committee meeting attended by telephone if the meeting is scheduled as an in-person meeting and \$250 for each committee meeting attended by telephone if the meeting is scheduled as an in-person meeting and \$250 for each committee meeting attended by telephone if the meeting is scheduled as an in-person meeting and \$250 for each committee meeting attended by telephone if the meeting is scheduled to be held by teleconference; and (vi) we reimburse all reasonable expenses of the Directors and the Chairman of the Board in attending Board and committee meetings. Directors' meetings are normally held on a quarterly basis, with additional meetings held as needed. All Director compensation is payable quarterly, in arrears.

The following table sets forth the details of the compensation accrued to Directors fees during Fiscal Year 2010. MACC presently maintains no pension, equity participation or retirement plans for its Directors.

Michael W. Dunn	
	\$23,000
Kevin J. Gadawski	\$9,250

- 58 -

Gordon J. Roth	\$14,000
James W. Eiler	\$14,500
Geoffrey T. Woolley (2)	\$6,000

(1) Consists only of directors' fees and does not include reimbursed expenses,

<sup>(2)</sup>Mr. Woolley resigned from the Board of Directors effective December 8, 2009.

Compensation of Executive Officers Discussion and Analysis

The Company has no employees and does not pay any compensation to any of its officers. The Company has not compensated its executive officers in any of the last three fiscal years. The Company does not provide any of bonus, stock options, stock appreciation rights, non-equity incentive plans, non-qualified deferred compensation or pension benefits to its executive officers. Further, the Company has no agreements with any officer pertaining to change in control payments. All of the Company's officers and staff are employed by the Adviser, which pays all of their cash compensation.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The Company does not have a separate compensation committee utilized to determine the appropriate compensation payable to the Company's executive officers and Directors due to the size of the Company. The Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee, however, is responsible for, among other things, annually reviewing and approving the Company's compensation policies for Directors. The members of the Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee for Fiscal Year 2010 were Michael W. Dunn (Chair), James W. Eiler and Kevin J. Gadawski. All members of the Corporate Governance/Nominating standards. No members of the Committee have ever served as officers or employees of the Company. No executive officers of the Company served, during Fiscal Year 2010: (i) on a compensation committee of another entity which had an executive officer serving on the Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee; (ii) as a director of another entity which had an executive officer serving on the Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee; or (iii) as a member of a compensation committee of another entity which had an executive officer serving on the corporate Governance/Nominating Committee; or (iii) as a member of a compensation committee of another entity which had an executive officer serving on the corporate Governance/Nominating Committee; or (iii) as a member of a compensation committee of another entity which had an executive officer serving on the corporate Governance/Nominating Committee; or (iii) as a member of a compensation committee of another entity which had an executive officer serving on the corporate Governance/Nominating Committee; or (iii) as a member of a compensation committee of another entity which had an executive officer serving on the corporate Governance/Nominating Committee; or (iii) as a member of a compensation committee of another entity which had an executive officer serving on the corporate Governance/Nominating Committee; of the Company.

## **Compensation Committee Report**

The Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee has not reviewed or discussed with the Company's management the Compensation of Executive Officers Discussion and Analysis set forth above because the Company's standing policy is to not compensate executive officers. The Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee did recommend to the Board of Directors that the Compensation of Executive Officers Discussion and Analysis be included in this report on Form 10-K.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE / NOMINATING COMMITTEE: Michael W. Dunn James W. Eiler Kevin J. Gadawski Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

#### Common Stock Ownership

As of December 15, 2010, there were 2,464,621 shares of common stock issued and outstanding. Because they serve as our investment advisers, EAM, a California limited liability company located at 2533 South Coast Highway 101, Suite 240, Cardiff-By-The-Sea, California 92007, and IAIA, a Delaware corporation located at 101 Second Street S.E., Suite 800, Cedar Rapids IA 52401, are deemed to control us, within the meaning of the 1940 Act. Additionally, Bridgewater International Group, LLC ("BIG") and Mr. Benjamin Jiaravanon (a former Director) control MACC through either direct or beneficial ownership of 804,689 of our shares, which as of August 19, 2010 comprised 32.65% of our issued and outstanding stock. BIG is organized under the laws of the State of Utah.

Our officers and directors, eight in number as a group, beneficially own 114,517 shares together, equal to 4.65% of our outstanding common stock. The following table sets forth certain information as of October 1, 2010, with respect to the common stock ownership of: (i) those persons or groups (as that term is used in Section 13(d)(3) of the 1934 Act who beneficially own more than 5% of our common stock, and (ii) each Director. Unless otherwise indicated, the addresses for the persons listed in the table is 2533 South Coast Highway 101, Suite 240, Cardiff-By-The-Sea, California 92007.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner	Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership	Percent of Class of Voting common stock
Bridgewater International Group, LLC (1) 10500 South 1300 West, South Jordan, Utah 84095	804,689	32.65%
Benjamin Jiaravanon (1) Ancol Barat, J1 Ancol VIII, No.1, Jakarta 14430 Indonesia	804,689	32.65%
Geoffrey T. Woolley	151,314	6.14%
Gordon J. Roth(2)	57,783	2.27%
Michael W. Dunn	46,734	1.90%
James W. Eiler	10,000	0.04%
Kevin J. Gadawski	0	0.00%
All Officers and Directors as a Group	114,517	4.65%

(1) The foregoing information with respect to BIG and Mr. Jiaravanon is based upon Amendment No. 1 to Schedule 13D, dated August 8, 2003, as subsequently amended October 10, 2003, March 9, 2005, May 3, 2005, May 19, 2005 and August 19, 2010, filed by BIG and others with the SEC (collectively, the "BIG Group 13D"). The BIG Group 13D disclosed control over 804,689 shares of common stock owned by BIG (the "BIG Shares"). BIG retains control of voting of the BIG Shares, including all other incidents of ownership of the stock, including beneficial ownership and dispositive power.

As the sole Manager of BIG, Mr. Jiaravanon maintains control over the voting power respecting the BIG Shares. BIG is a wholly owned subsidiary of Aleksin, a corporation organized under the laws of the British Virgin Islands. Aleksin is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Maze Industrial Ltd. ("Maze"), a corporation organized under the laws of the British Virgin Islands. Maze is 100% owned by Sumet Jiaravanon, an individual.

(2) Mr. Roth individually owns 5,151 shares of common stock. RCP, in which Mr. Roth has shared control of voting power, owns 52,632 shares of common stock

- 60 -

Item Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

13.

Investment Adviser and Certain Business Relationships

MACC entered into the Advisory Agreement with EAM on April 29, 2008. EAM is registered as an investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended, and is subject to the reporting and other requirements thereof. EAM's address is 2533 South Coast Highway 101, Suite 240, Cardiff-By-The Sea, California 92007.

The Advisory Agreement provides that EAM is entitled to receive a Management Fee equal to an annual rate of 2.0% of Assets Under Management (as defined in the Advisory Agreement). In April 2009, EAM elected to reduce their fee to 1.5% and additionally in May 2009 to reduce their fee to 1.0% until further notice. In addition to the Management Fee, EAM is entitled to receive the Incentive Fee in an amount equal to (i) 20.0% of the net capital gains, before taxes, attributable to MACC's New Portfolio (which would include any follow-on investments made to the Existing Portfolio) and (ii) 13.4% of the Net Capital Gains, before taxes, attributable to MACC's Existing Portfolio (as defined in the Advisory Agreement). The amount of the Incentive Fee and all incentive compensation in any fiscal year, may not exceed the limit prescribed by Section 205(b)(3) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940. There were no Management Fees under the Advisory Agreement paid to EAM for the year ended September 30, 2010.

MACC, EAM and InvestAmerica are also parties to a Subadvisory Agreement dated April 29, 2008 ("Subadvisory Agreement") and approved by MACC shareholders at the 2008 Annual Shareholders Meeting. The address of the Subadviser is 101 Second Street S.E., Suite 800, Cedar Rapids, Iowa 52401. From MACC's inception in 1995 through 2004, and then from July 2005 through April 29, 2008, InvestAmerica was the investment adviser to MACC. Pursuant to the Subadvisory Agreement, InvestAmerica has been retained to monitor and manage the Existing Portfolio, including exits, preparation of valuations, follow-on investment analysis and recommendations and other portfolio management matters. InvestAmerica also currently provides certain accounting and financial services for MACC. The management fee (as defined in the Subadvisory Agreement) is equal to 50% of the management fee actually paid by MACC to EAM attributable to Existing Portfolio Companies, payable in arrears. EAM elected to reduce their fees however InvestAmerica continues to receive a management fee equal to 50% of the original agreement or an annual rate of 1% of Assets Under Management attributable to Existing Portfolio Companies. The amount of the incentive fee payable by EAM to InvestAmerica under the Subadvisory Agreement is 100% of the incentive fee received by EAM under the Advisory Agreement attributable to the Existing Portfolio. The Subadvisory Agreement does not result in any additional expense to MACC. Total Management Fees under the Subadvisory Agreement paid to InvestAmerica for the year that ended September 30, 2010 were \$114,614. There were no incentive fees accrued or paid under the Subadvisory Agreement to InvestAmerica in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010 or the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009.

Mr. Travis T. Prentice, President and CEO of MACC is a founder and President of EAM. Mr. Montie L. Weisenberger, Treasurer and Secretary of MACC is a founder and Senior Vice President of EAM. Mr. Derek J. Gaertner Chief Financial Officer and Chief Compliance Officer of MACC is Vice President of EAM.

Item Principal Accounting Fees and Services. 14.

The following table presents fees incurred for professional services rendered by KPMG LLP ("KPMG"), the Company's independent registered public accounting firm, for fiscal Year 2009 and for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2010:

Fee Category	Fiscal Year 2010 Fees	Fiscal Year 2009 Fees
Audit Fees	\$170,000	\$79,940
Audit-Related Fees	\$25,860	\$7,000
Tax Fees	\$11,850	\$15,000
Total Fees	\$207,710	\$101,940

- 61 -

Audit Fees were for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company's financial statements and review of the interim financial statements included in quarterly reports and services that are normally provided by KPMG in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements and include quarterly reviews and security counts.

Audit-Related Fees were for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of the Company's financial statements and are not reported under "Audit Fees." These services include accounting consultations in connection with acquisitions, consultations concerning financial accounting and reporting standards.

Tax Fees were for professional services for federal, state and international tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning and include preparation of federal and state income tax returns, and other tax research, consultation, correspondence and advice.

All Other Fees are for services other than the services reported above. The Company did not pay any fees for such other services in fiscal year 2010 or fiscal year 2009.

The Audit Committee has concluded the provision of the non-audit services listed above is compatible with maintaining the independence of KPMG. KPMG did not bill the Company's investment adviser, EAM, for any non-audit services in either fiscal year 2010 or fiscal year 2009.

Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Audit Committee pre-approves all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the independent registered public accounting firm. These services may include audit services, audit-related services, tax services and other services. Pre-approval is generally provided for up to one year and any pre-approval is detailed as to the particular service or category of services and is generally subject to a specific budget. The independent auditors and management are required to periodically report to the Audit Committee regarding the extent of services provided by the independent auditors in accordance with this pre-approval, and the fees for the services performed to date. The Audit Committee may also pre-approve particular services on a case-by-case basis.

- 62 -

## PART IV

Item Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules. 15.

(a)

Documents filed as part of this Report:

(1) Balance Sheet at September 30, 2010 and 2009
Statement of Operations for the years ended September 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008
Statements of Changes in Net Assets for the years ended September 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008
Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended September 30, 2010, 2009 and 2000
Notes to Financial Statements
Schedule of Investments as of September 30, 2010 and 2009
Notes to the Schedule of Investments

The Report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm with respect to the financial statements listed above.

- (2)No financial statement schedules of the Company are filed herewith because (i) such schedules are not required or (ii) the information required has been presented in the aforementioned financial statements and schedule of investments.
- (3) The following exhibits are filed herewith or incorporated by reference as set forth below:
- 3(i).1 Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (incorporated by reference to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 1997, as filed with the SEC on May 14, 1997).
- 3(i).2Articles of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (incorporated by reference to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2005, as filed with the SEC on August 15, 2005).
- 3(ii)Fourth Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company (incorporated by reference to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2010, as filed with the SEC on August 16, 2010).
- 10.1 Investment Advisory Agreement between MACC Private Equities Inc. and Eudaimonia Asset Management, LLC dated April 29, 2008 (incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on May 1, 2008).
- 10.2 Investment Subadvisory Agreement among the Company, Eudaimonia Asset Management, LLC and InvestAmerica Investment Advisors, Inc. dated April 29, 2008 (incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on May 1, 2008).
- 10.3 Business Loan Agreement dated August 30, 2007 with Cedar Rapids Bank and Trust Company, as amended by Omnibus Amendment Consent and Waiver dated as of April 29, 2008 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10(i).1 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 6, 2007).

Second Amendment to Business Loan Agreement and Security Agreements by and among MACC Private Equities Inc. successor in interest to MorAmerica Capital Corporation and Cedar Rapids Bank and Trust Company dated August 14, 2009 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.4 of Annual Report on Form 10-K filed December 28, 2009).

- 10.5Commercial Pledge and Security Agreement dated August 30, 2007 with Cedar Rapids Bank and Trust Company, as amended by Omnibus Amendment Consent and Waiver dated as of April 29, 2008 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10(i).3 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 6, 2007).
- 10.6Commercial Security Agreement dated August 30, 2007 with Cedar Rapids Bank and Trust Company, as amended by Omnibus Amendment Consent and Waiver dated as of April 29, 2008 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10(i).4 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 6, 2007).
- 10.7Promissory Note dated August 30, 2007 in favor of Cedar Rapids Bank and Trust Company, as amended by Omnibus Amendment Consent and Waiver dated as of April 29, 2008 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10(i).5 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 6, 2007).

- 63 -

- 10.8Promissory Note dated August 30, 2007 in favor of Cedar Rapids Bank and Trust Company, as amended by Omnibus Amendment Consent and Waiver dated as of April 29, 2008 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10(i).6 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 6, 2007).
- 10.9 Omnibus Amendment Consent and Waiver dated as of April 29, 2008 among MACC Private Equities Inc., MorAmerica Capital Corporation and Cedar Rapids Bank and Trust (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 1, 2008).
- 10.10Change In Terms Agreement dated as of April 12, 2010 by and among MACC Private Equities Inc. and Cedar Rapids Bank and Trust (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 13, 2010).
- 10.11 Disbursement Request and Authorization dated as of April 12, 2010, by and among MACC Private Equities Inc. and Cedar Rapids Bank and Trust Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 13, 2010).
- 10.12Notice of Final Agreement dated as of April 12, 2010, by and among MACC Private Equities Inc. and Cedar Rapids Bank and Trust Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 13, 2010).
- 10.13 Third Amendment to Business Loan Agreement dated as of April 12, 2010, by and between Cedar Rapids Bank & Trust Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 13, 2010).
- 10.14Safekeeping Agreement with Cedar Rapids Bank and Trust Company dated September 1, 2007 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10(i).9 of Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 6, 2007).
- 14Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 14, 2008).
- 31.1 Section 302 Certification of Travis T. Prentice (President and CEO).
- 31.2 Section 302 Certification of Derek J. Gaertner (CFO).
- 32.1 Section 906 Certification of Travis T. Prentice (President and CEO).
- 32.2 Section 906 Certification of Derek J. Gaertner (CFO).

(b)

Exhibits

See (a)(3) above.

(c)

Financial Statement Schedules

See (a)(1) and (a)(2) above.

## SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on December 29, 2010.

/s/ Travis T. Prentice Travis T. Prentice President and CEO

/s/ Derek J. Gaertner Derek J. Gaertner Chief Financial Officer and Chief Compliance Officer Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature	Date
/s/ Michael W. Dunn Michael W. Dunn, Director	December 29, 2010
/s/ James W. Eiler James W. Eiler, Director	December 29, 2010
/s/ Gordon J. Roth Gordon J. Roth, Director	December 29, 2010
/s/ Kevin J. Gadawski Kevin J. Gadawski, Director	December 29, 2010